
 
View or subscribe to updates for agendas, reports and minutes at 

mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk. 
All public papers are available from the calendar link to this meeting once published 

Agenda  

 

Planning - Oxford City Planning 

Committee 

  

 

This meeting will be held on: 

Date: Tuesday 21 February 2023 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Place: Long Room - Oxford Town Hall 

 

For further information please contact:  

Emma Lund, Committee and Members' Services Officer, Committee 
Services Officer 

 01865 252367  DemocraticServices@oxford.gov.uk 

 

Members of the public can attend to observe this meeting and: 

 may register in advance to speak to the committee in accordance with the 
committee’s rules 

 may record all or part of the meeting in accordance with the Council’s protocol 

Information about speaking and recording is set out in the agenda and on the website 

Please contact the Committee Services Officer to register to speak; to discuss 
recording the meeting; or with any other queries.  

https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20236/getting_involved_at_council_meetings
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/1100/protocol_for_recording_at_public_meetings
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20236/getting_involved_at_council_meetings


 

Decisions come into effect after the post-meeting councillor call in period expires, or 
after a called-in decision is reconsidered, and the Head of Planning Services has issued 

the formal decision notice.  

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

 
 

Committee Membership 

Councillors: Membership 11: Quorum 5: substitutes are permitted.  

 

Councillor Mary Clarkson (Chair) Marston; 

Councillor Louise Upton (Vice-Chair) Walton Manor; 

Councillor Mohammed Altaf-Khan Headington; 

Councillor Shaista Aziz Rose Hill & Iffley; 

Councillor Nigel Chapman Headington Hill & Northway; 

Councillor Laurence Fouweather Cutteslowe & Sunnymead; 

Councillor Alex Hollingsworth Carfax & Jericho; 

Councillor Jemima Hunt St Clement's; 

Councillor Sajjad Malik Temple Cowley; 

Councillor Lucy Pegg Donnington; 

Councillor Ajaz Rehman Lye Valley; 

 

Apologies and notification of substitutes received before the publication are shown 
under Apologies for absence in the agenda. Those sent after publication will be 
reported at the meeting. Substitutes for the Chair and Vice-chair do not take on these 
roles. 



 

Decisions come into effect after the post-meeting councillor call in period expires, or 
after a called-in decision is reconsidered, and the Head of Planning Services has issued 

the formal decision notice.  

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

 

Agenda 
 

  Pages 

 Planning applications - background papers and 
additional information 

 

 To see representations, full plans, and supplementary information 
relating to applications on the agenda, please click here and enter the 

relevant Planning Reference number in the search box. 

 

Any additional information received following the publication of this 
agenda will be reported and summarised at the meeting. 

 

 

 

1  Apologies for absence and substitutions  

 An apology for absence has been received from Councillor Aziz.  
Councillor Railton will substitute for Councillor Aziz. 

 

2  Declarations of interest  

3  22/02168/FUL: Plots 23-26, Oxford Science Park, 
Grenoble Road, Oxford OX4 4GB 

11 - 68 

 Site Address: Plots 23-26, Oxford Science Park, Grenoble 
Road, Oxford 

Proposal: Erection of 3no. laboratory and office 
buildings with ancillary commercial uses (all 
within Use Class E). Provision of associated 
landscaping, car parking, cycle parking and 
creation of new accesses. 

Reason at 
Committee: 

The proposal is a major development. 

Recommendation: 

The Oxford City Planning Committee is recommended to: 

1. approve the application for the reasons given in the report 
and subject to the required planning conditions set out in 
section 12 of this report and grant planning permission; and 

 

http://public.oxford.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

Decisions come into effect after the post-meeting councillor call in period expires, or 
after a called-in decision is reconsidered, and the Head of Planning Services has issued 

the formal decision notice.  

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

subject to: 

 the satisfactory completion of a legal agreement under 
section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
other enabling powers to secure the planning obligations set 
out in the recommended heads of terms which are set out in 
this report; and 

2. delegate authority to the Head of Planning Services to: 

 finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report 
including such refinements, amendments, additions and/or 
deletions as the Head of Planning Services considers 
reasonably necessary; and 

 finalise the recommended legal agreement under section 
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and other 
enabling powers as set out in the report, including refining, 
adding to, amending and/or deleting the obligations detailed 
in the heads of terms set out in this report (including to 
dovetail with and where appropriate, reinforce the final 
conditions and informatives to be attached to the planning 
permission) as the Head of Planning Services considers 
reasonably necessary; and  

 complete the section 106 legal agreement referred to above 
and issue the planning permission. 

 

4  Minutes 69 - 74 

 Recommendation: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 24 
January 2023 as a true and accurate record. 

 

 

5  Forthcoming applications  

 Items currently expected to be considered by the committee at future 
meetings are listed for information. This is not a definitive list and 
applications may be added or removed at any point. These are not for 
discussion at this meeting. 

21/00110/FUL: The Clarendon Centre, 
Cornmarket Street, Oxford OX1 3JD 

Major 

21/02639/FUL: Land West Of 75 Town Furze, 
Oxford, OX3 7EW 

Called-in 

22/00410/LBC: Green Templeton College, 
Woodstock Road, Oxford, OX2 6HG 

Major 

 



 

Decisions come into effect after the post-meeting councillor call in period expires, or 
after a called-in decision is reconsidered, and the Head of Planning Services has issued 

the formal decision notice.  

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

22/00409/FUL: Green Templeton College, 
Woodstock Road, Oxford OX2 6HG 

Major 

22/00962/FUL: Ruskin Hall, Dunstan Road, 
Oxford, OX3 9BZ 

Major 

22/01554/FUL: Land at Elizabeth Place and 
Westlands Drive, Oxford, OX3 9QS 

Major 

22/02555/FUL: Plot 27, Oxford Science Park, 
Robert Robinson Avenue, Oxford OX4 4GA 

Major 

22/02661/FUL: 472-474 Banbury Road, Oxford 
OX2 7RG 

Major 

22/01660/FUL: 36 Feilden Grove, Oxford OX3 
0DU 

Called-in 

22/02446/CT3: Donnington Recreation 
Ground, Freelands Road, Oxford OX4 4BT 

Called-in 

22/02667/VAR: Street Record, Chiltern 
Railway from Oxford to Bicester, Oxford 

Major 

22/02880/RES: Plot 2000, John Smith Drive, 
Oxford 

Major 

22/02969/FUL: Littlemore House, Oxford 
Innovation Park, 33 Armstrong Road, Oxford 
OX4 4FY 

Major 

22/03078/FUL: Land Bounded by Meadow 
Lane and Church Way, Oxford 

Major 

22/02799/FUL: Wolfson College, Linton Road, 
Oxford OX2 6UD 

Major 

22/02849/FUL: Land at Winchester Banbury 
and Bevington Road, Oxford 

Major 

22/03076/FUL: 135-137 Botley Road, Oxford Major 

22/03042/RES: Oxford North Northern 
Gateway Land Adjacent A44 A40 A34 And 
Wolvercote Roundabout A40, Section From 
Cherwell District Council Boundary To 
Wolvercote Roundabout, Oxford 

Major 

22/00036/FUL: 75 Langley Close, Oxford, OX3 
7DB 

The 
applicant 
is an 
Oxford 
City 
Councillor 



 

Decisions come into effect after the post-meeting councillor call in period expires, or 
after a called-in decision is reconsidered, and the Head of Planning Services has issued 

the formal decision notice.  

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

22/03067/FUL: Trinity House, John Smith 
Drive, Oxford OX4 2RZ 

Major 

22/02954/OUT: Land at Oxpens Road, Oxford 
OX1 1TB 

Major 

22/02955/FUL: Land at Oxpens Road, Oxford 
OX1 1TB 

Major 

22/03049/FUL: Land North of Bayswater 
Brook, Oxford 

Major 

22/02868/FUL: Kassam Stadium and Land 
Adjacent, Falcon Close, Oxford 

Major 

23/00142/FUL: Linton Lodge Hotel, 11-13 
Linton Road, Oxford OX2 6UJ 

Major 

 

 

6  Dates of future meetings  

 Future meetings of the Committee are scheduled at 6.00pm on: 

 

21 March 2023 

18 April 2023 

23 May 2023 

20 June 2023 

18 July 2023 

15 August 2023 

 

 

 



 

 

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

Information for those attending 

Recording and reporting on meetings held in public 

Members of public and press can record, or report in other ways, the parts of the meeting 
open to the public. You are not required to indicate in advance but it helps if you notify the 
Committee Services Officer prior to the meeting so that they can inform the Chair and 
direct you to the best place to record.  

The Council asks those recording the meeting: 

 To follow the protocol which can be found on the Council’s website  

 Not to disturb or disrupt the meeting 

 Not to edit the recording in a way that could lead to misinterpretation of the 
proceedings. This includes not editing an image or views expressed in a way that may 
ridicule or show a lack of respect towards those being recorded. 

 To avoid recording members of the public present, even inadvertently, unless they are 
addressing the meeting. 

Please be aware that you may be recorded during your speech and any follow-up. If you 
are attending please be aware that recording may take place and that you may be 
inadvertently included in these. 

The Chair of the meeting has absolute discretion to suspend or terminate any activities 
that in his or her opinion are disruptive. 

Councillors declaring interests  

General duty 

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 
on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 
election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s 
area; corporate tenancies; and securities. These declarations must be recorded in each 
councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the Council’s website. 

Declaring an interest 

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, 
you must declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature as well as 
the existence of the interest. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having 
declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and 
must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed. 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of 
Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never 
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and 
that “you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 
questioned”. The matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a 
whole and regard should continue to be paid to the perception of the public. 

Members’ Code – Other Registrable Interests 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or 
wellbeing** of one of your Other Registerable Interests*** then you must declare an 

https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/1100/protocol_for_recording_at_public_meetings


 

 

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

interest. You must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and you must 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed. 

Members’ Code – Non Registrable Interests 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or 
wellbeing (and does not fall under disclosable pecuniary interests), or the financial interest 
or wellbeing of a relative or close associate, you must declare the interest.  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects your own financial interest or wellbeing, 
a financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate or a financial interest or 
wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests, then you must declare the 
interest.  

You must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the 
room, if you answer in the affirmative to this test: 

“Where a matter affects the financial interest or well-being: 

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;  

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 
would affect your view of the wider public interest You may speak on the matter 
only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting.” 

Otherwise, you may stay in the room, take part in the discussion and vote. 

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member 
her or himself but also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with 
as husband or wife or as if they were civil partners. 

** Wellbeing can be described as a condition of contentedness, healthiness and 
happiness; anything that could be said to affect a person’s quality of life, either positively 
or negatively, is likely to affect their wellbeing. 

*** Other Registrable Interests: a) any unpaid directorships b) any Body of which you are a 
member or are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your authority c) any Body (i) exercising functions of a public 
nature (ii) directed to charitable purposes or (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes 
the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of 
which you are a member or in a position of general control or management.



 

 

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

 

Procedure for dealing with planning applications at the Oxford City 
Planning Committee and Planning Review Committee 

Planning controls the development and use of land in the public interest. Applications must 
be determined in accordance with the Council’s adopted policies, unless material planning 
considerations indicate otherwise. The Committee must be conducted in an orderly, fair 
and impartial manner. Advice on bias, predetermination and declarations of interests is 
available from the Monitoring Officer. 

The following minimum standards of practice will be followed: 

1. All members of the Committee will have pre-read the officers’ report. Committee 
members are also encouraged to view any supporting material and to visit the site if 
they feel that would be helpful. (In accordance with the guidance at 24.15 (Planning 
Code of Practice) in the Council’s Constitution). 

2. At the meeting the Chair may draw attention to this procedure. The Chair may also 
explain who is entitled to vote. 

3. The sequence for each application discussed at Committee shall be as follows:  

(a) the planning officer will introduce it with a short presentation; 

(b) any objectors may speak for up to 5 minutes in total; 

(c) any supporters may speak for up to 5 minutes in total; 

(d) speaking times may be extended by the Chair, provided that equal time is given to 
both sides. Any non-voting City Councillors and/or Parish and County Councillors 
who may wish to speak for or against the application will have to do so as part of 
the two 5-minute slots mentioned above; 

(e) voting members of the Committee may raise questions (which shall be directed via 
the Chair to the lead officer presenting the application, who may pass them to other 
relevant officers and/or other speakers); and  

(f) voting members will debate and determine the application.  

4. In determining an application Committee members should not: 

(a) rely on considerations which are not material planning considerations in law; 

(b) question the personal integrity or professionalism of officers in public;  

(c) proceed to a vote if minded to determine an application against officer’s 
recommendation until the reasons for overturning the officer’s recommendation 
have been formulated including the reasons for refusal or the wording of any 
planning conditions; or  

(d) seek to re-design, or negotiate amendments to, an application. The Committee 
must determine applications as they stand and may impose appropriate conditions. 

Public requests to speak 

Members of the public wishing to speak must notify the Committee Services Officer 
by noon on the working day before the meeting, giving their name, the 
application/agenda item they wish to speak on and whether they are objecting to or 
supporting the application. Notifications can be made via e-mail or telephone, to the 
Committee Services Officer (details are on the front of the Committee agenda). 



 

 

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

Written statements from the public 

Any written statement that members of the public or Councillors wish to be 
considered should be sent to the planning officer by noon two working days before 
the day of the meeting. The planning officer will report these at the meeting. Material 
received from the public at the meeting will not be accepted or circulated, as Councillors 
are unable to give proper consideration to the new information and officers may not be 
able to check for accuracy or provide considered advice on any material consideration 
arising. Any such material will not be displayed or shown at the meeting. 

Exhibiting model and displays at the meeting 

Applicants or members of the public can exhibit models or displays at the meeting as long 
as they notify the Committee Services Officer of their intention by noon two working days 
before the start of the meeting so that members can be notified. 

Recording meetings 

This is covered in the general information above. 

Meeting Etiquette 

All representations should be heard in silence and without interruption. The Chair will not 
permit disruptive behaviour. Members of the public are reminded that if the meeting is not 
allowed to proceed in an orderly manner then the Chair will withdraw the opportunity to 
address the Committee. The Committee is a meeting held in public, not a public meeting. 

This procedure is detailed in the Annex to part 24 of the Council’s Constitution as 
agreed at Council in March 2022. 

 



1 
 

OXFORD CITY PLANNING COMMITTEE  21st February 2023 

 

Application number: 22/02168/FUL 

  

Decision due by 15th December 2022 

  

Extension of time To be agreed upon completion of legal agreement 

  

Proposal Erection of 3no. laboratory and office buildings with 
ancillary commercial uses (all within Use Class E). 
Provision of associated landscaping, car parking, cycle 
parking and creation of new accesses. 

  

Site address Plots 23-26, Oxford Science Park, Grenoble Road, 

Oxford – see Appendix 1 for site plan 
  

Ward Littlemore Ward 

  

Case officer Jennifer Coppock 

 

Agent:  Mr Prashanna 
Vivekananda 

Applicant:  c/oThe Oxford 
Science Park 

 

Reason at Committee Major development 

 

 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

1.1.   The committee is recommended to: 

1.1.1. approve the application for the reasons given in the report and subject to the 
required planning conditions set out in section 12 of this report and grant planning 
permission; and subject to: 

 the satisfactory completion of a legal agreement under section.106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers to secure the 
planning obligations set out in the recommended heads of terms which are set 
out in this report; and 

 

1.1.2. delegate authority to the Head of Planning Services to: 

 finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report including such 
refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions as the Head of Planning 
Services considers reasonably necessary; and 

 finalise the recommended legal agreement under section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers as set out in this report, 
including refining, adding to, amending and/or deleting the obligations detailed 
in the heads of terms set out in this report (including to dovetail with and where 
appropriate, reinforce the final conditions and informatives to be attached to 

11

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

the planning permission) as the Head of Planning Services considers 
reasonably necessary; and  

 complete the section 106 legal agreement referred to above and issue the 
planning permission. 

 

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1. This report considers the proposal for the erection of 3no. laboratory and office 
buildings for the purposes of research and development within the Oxford Science 
Park, an allocated employment site. Officers consider that the proposed 
development would respond appropriately to the site context and Local Plan 
allocation. The proposal would provide improved transport infrastructure through 
financial contributions and it is considered that there would be no harm to the 
highway network as a result of traffic generation. The development would result in a 
net gain in tree canopy cover through new and retained soft landscaping.  

2.2. There would be no harm to any identified protected species, subject to off-setting 
within the wider Science Park to meet biodiversity net gain which would be secured 
by a legal agreement. The development would be of a sustainable design and 
construction, achieving a 40.2% reduction in carbon emissions when set against the 
2021 Part L Building Regulations. The currently proposed car parking provision is 
considered excessive in accordance with the objectives of the Oxford Local Plan 
2036, however given the relative unsustainable nature of the site at present and 
agreement by the applicant to remove 200 spaces by the time the Cowley Branch 
Line is operating at 2 trains per hour, the proposal is considered acceptable in these 
specific circumstances. Adequate cycle parking would be provided across the site, 
with further details to be secured by condition. There would be no adverse flood risk 
and drainage impact, nor would there be adverse land contamination, noise pollution 
or air quality impact. 

2.3. Subject to appropriately worded conditions and a section 106 legal agreement, the 
development would accord with all policies in the Oxford Local Plan 2036 and NPPF.     

3. LEGAL AGREEMENT 

3.1. This application is subject to a legal agreement to cover: 

 the removal of 200 car parking bays once the Cowley Branch Line Passenger 
Service is operating 2 trains per hour. 

 a requirement that tenancy agreements shall include the loss of parking 
spaces and that tenants shall be sufficiently notified  

 Contributions towards bus services serving the Oxford Science Park. 

 Contribution towards active travel improvements. 

 Travel Plan monitoring fee. 

12



3 
 

 Submission and implementation of a Biodiversity Scheme to secure a 
Biodiversity Net Gain of 5% 

4. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) 

4.1. The proposal is liable for CIL amounting to £1,947,819.08 

5. SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 

5.1. The site is one of the last remaining undeveloped plots within the Oxford Science 
Park and sits within the southern portion of the Park, delineated by the A4074 dual 
carriageway immediately to the south with residential development beyond, 
woodland to the east with Grenoble Road beyond and Littlemore Brook to the west. 

5.2. Plots 23-26 extend to approximately 3.76ha and are characterised by large areas of 
rough grassland with a strip of hardstanding along the northern portion. The site 
slopes gradually to the west towards Littlemore Brook with a level difference of 
approximately 2m. A dense belt of trees line the eastern and southern boundaries of 
plots 23-25, screening the site from Grenoble Road and partially screening the site 
from the A4074. A large pond and Littlemore Brook lie to the north and west of plot 
26 respectively. 

5.3. The site is accessed from the circular Heatley Road within the Park. Surrounding 
commercial units at three and four storeys include the Schrodinger Building, Fletcher 
House, Winchester House and Minerva House. 

5.4. Residential development surrounds the site, beyond the Science Park, with the 
partially constructed and occupied Newman Place development to the west, the 
Rock Farm development within Sandford to the south and a residential park to the 
east of Grenoble Road. Land to the south has been allocated for a mixed use 
scheme including 3000 new homes, an extension to the Science Park, primary and 
secondary schools, retail and leisure facilities as well as public transport 
improvements.   

5.5. The site is designated as a Category 1 Employment Site, has been allocated for 
employment use under Policy SP9 and falls within the Cowley Branch Line Area of 
Change. These designations are set out in more detail within paragraph 10.4 below.  

5.6. The majority of the site falls within flood zone 1 (lowest probability of flooding), 
however the western portion of the site falls within flood zones 2 and 3 (medium to 
high probability of flooding) due to its proximity to Littlemore Brook.  

 

 

 

 

 

13



4 
 

5.7. See site location plan below: 

 
Figure 1: Site location plan  
 

6. PROPOSAL 

6.1. The application proposes to erect 3no. four storey buildings to serve as offices and 
containment level 2 (CL2) laboratories for life science research and development 
purposes (medium risk biological agents and hazards, genetically modified 
organisms, animals and plants). At ground floor level it is anticipated that ancillary 
uses would be provided in the form of cafes and child care facilities, however as the 
scheme is speculative with no end user confirmed at the time of writing, the exact 
location and extent of these uses is unknown. The buildings would provide 65, 
539sq. m. of internal floorspace.  

6.2. The proposal would utilise the change in ground level by creating a below-podium 
(basement) parking area with shower and storage facilities where the ground falls 
away. In order to create a basement with an approximate depth of 4.9m, the depth of 
excavation required would be approximately 2.9m.  

6.3. 883 car parking spaces would be provided within the basement, at grade and within 
the multi-storey car park attached to building 3 (the easternmost building). The multi-
storey car park would be flexible with the ability to convert to additional laboratory 
and office floorspace once demand dictates. 

6.4. The podium between the buildings would be hard and soft landscaped with furnished 
enclosures providing opportunities for outdoor working. Soft landscaping and seating 
areas would be provided to the building frontages. The existing gap in vegetation 
along the A4074 would be infilled with a range of trees to supplement this existing 
ecological corridor and partially screen the buildings from view.   

14



5 
 

  

Figure 2: Proposed site plan 

7. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

7.1. The table below sets out the relevant planning history for the application site: 

21/02120/OUT - Development of up to 32,350sqm of Class E(g) floorspace  and 
provision of up to 830 car parking spaces. All matters reserved. Withdrawn 
12.04.2022 
 
07/02830/RES - Erection of three storey building for Business use (Class B1) at 
plot 26.  Approval of reserved matters under planning permission 96/01416/NO 
for layout, scale, appearance, access and landscaping. Approved 05.03.2008 
 
00/02256/NF - Proposed four storey building for B1 use at plot 26. Car parking 
for 189 cars including 69 in decked car park. Approved 15.02.2001 
 
96/01416/NO - Outline application for extension to Science Park (Phase 2 & 2a) 
including scheme of structural landscaping with mounding adjacent to Grenoble 
Road roundabout (Amended plans). Approved 03.07.2000 

 

 
 
 
 

15



6 
 

8. RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY 

8.1. The following policies are relevant to the application: 

Topic National 

Planning 

Policy 

Framework 

Local Plan Other planning 

documents 

Design 126-136 DH1 - High quality design 
and placemaking 
 
DH7 - External servicing 
features and stores 
 

 

Conservation/ 

Heritage 

189-208 DH2 - Views and building 
heights 
 

 

Housing 119-125 H14 - Privacy, daylight 
and sunlight 
 

 

Commercial 81-83 SP9 - The Oxford Science 
Park (Littlemore and 
Minchery Farm) 
 

 

Natural 

environment 

152-188 RE3 - Flood risk 
management 
 
RE4 - Sustainable and 
foul drainage, surface 
 
G1 - Protection of 
Green/Blue Infrastructure 
 
G2 - Protection of 
biodiversity geo-diversity 
 
G7 - Protection of existing 
Green Infrastructure 
 
G8 - New and enhanced 
Green and Blue  
Infrastructure 
 

 

Transport 104-113 M1 - Prioritising 
walking,cycling and public 
transport 
 
M2 - Assessing and 
managing development 
 
M3 - Motor vehicle parking 
 
M4 - Provision of electric 
charging points 
 
M5 - Bicycle Parking 
AOC7 - Cowley Branch 

Parking Standards SPD 

16



7 
 

Line 
 

Environmental 7-14, 119-125, 
183-186. 

RE1 - Sustainable design 
and construction 
 
RE6 - Air Quality 
 
RE8 - Noise and vibration 
 
RE9 - Land Quality 
 

Energy Statement TAN 

Miscellaneous 7-14, 92-103, 
114-118,  
119-125. 

S1 - Sustainable 
development 
 
RE2 - Efficient use of 
Land 
 
RE5 - Health, wellbeing, 
and Health Impact 
Assessment 
 
RE7 - Managing the 
impact of development 
 
V8 – Utilities 
 
V9 - Digital Infrastructure 
 

 

 

9. CONSULTATION RESPONSES 

9.1. Site notices were displayed around the application site on 23rd September 2022 and 
an advertisement was published in The Oxford Times newspaper on 29th September 
2022. 

Statutory and non-statutory consultees 

Oxford Civic Society 

9.2. Support the design and landscaping of the proposal and welcome the additional 
employment the proposal would bring to the area as well as the applicant’s intention 
to reduce parking numbers.  

Littlemore Parish Council 

9.3. Support the sympathetically and sustainably designed buildings with additional 
provision of green leisure spaces. The Parish Council endorses the measures to 
encourage active travel.  

Oxfordshire County Council (Highways) 

9.4. No objection, subject to conditions and financial contributions towards public 
transport services, PROW infrastructure and active travel infrastructure to be 
secured by legal agreement.  

 

17



8 
 

Oxfordshire County Council (Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA)) 

9.5. No objection subject to conditions.  

Thames Water Utilities Limited 

9.6. No objection, subject to conditions.  

Environment Agency 

9.7. Initially, the EA objected on biodiversity grounds as it was considered that the 
proposed enhancements to the balancing pond were not sufficient. Following their 
objection, officers and the applicant met with the EA on two occasions to discuss 
appropriate measures and it was agreed that enhancements could be secured by 
condition. On 3rd February, the EA removed their objection and suggested conditions 
re. the balancing pond, a LEMP and finished floor levels. Please see conditions 38, 
39 and 41 at section 12 below. 

Public representations 

9.8. Eight local businesses commented in support of this application from the following  
addresses:  

 Oxford Academic Health Science Network, Oxford Science Park 

 Velocys, Oxford Science Park 

 Exscientia, Oxford Science Park 

 LRE System Ltd, Oxford Science Park 

 OrganOx, Oxford Science Park 

 Oxgene, Oxford Science Park 

 Theolytics, Oxford Science Park 

 Enara Bio Ltd., Oxford Science Park 
 

10. PLANNING MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

10.1. Officers consider the determining issues to be: 

a. Principle of development 
b. Design and views 
c. Archaeology  
d. Impact on neighbouring amenity 
e. Health and wellbeing 
f.            Highways and parking 
g. Trees and landscaping 
h. Air Quality 
i.            Sustainable design and construction 
j.            Noise 
k. Land quality 
l.            Flood Risk and Drainage 
m. Ecology 
n. Utilities 

  

18



9 
 

a. Principle of development 

10.2. The NPPF sets out a presumption in favour of sustainable development and the 
Core Principles encourage the efficient use of previously developed land. Policies S1 
and RE2 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036 are consistent with this approach, policy RE2 
requires that development proposals must make best use of site capacity, in a 
manner compatible with the site itself, the surrounding area and broader 
consideration of the needs of Oxford. The development proposal must have a 
density appropriate for the proposed use, with an appropriate scale and massing, 
maximise the appropriate density with a built form and site layout appropriate to the 
capacity of the site. 

10.3. The Oxford Local Plan recognises at para 128 that Oxford has “one of the highest 
concentrations of knowledge intensive businesses in the UK. It has the fastest 
growing and one of the best educated workforces in the country and is the main 
centre of research and spin outs in the country. The Local Plan supports the growth 
of these sectors and puts in place measures to manage the effects of success”. The 
Oxfordshire Strategic Economic Plan (2017) sets out the long term vision and 
ambitions for economic growth in the County, which is that overall by 2030 
“Oxfordshire will be recognised as a vibrant, sustainable, inclusive world leading 
economy driven by innovation, enterprise and research intelligence”. The 
Oxfordshire Local Industrial Strategy (2019) looks to position Oxfordshire as one of 
the top 3 global innovation ecosystems highlighting the County’s world leading 
science and technology cluster. 

10.4. As above, the Oxford Science Park (TOSP) forms part of a Category 1 employment 
site and as such, under the requirements of policy E1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036, 
the site is protected for employment floorspace only. Planning permission will be 
granted for the intensification, modernisation and regeneration for employment 
purposes of any employment site if it can be demonstrated that the development 
makes the best and most efficient use of land and does not cause unacceptable 
environmental impacts and effects. Further, TOSP is allocated under policy SP9 for 
employment uses that directly relate to Oxford’s key sectors of research led 
employment. The policy requires that development should be designed to enhance 
the external appearance of the Park and to optimise opportunities to enhance the 
park’s landscape and public realm. The site also falls within the Cowley Branch Line 
Area of Change, where high density employment development that makes efficient 
use of land is expected and it is recognised that taller buildings can positively 
contribute to increasing density and enabling a more efficient use of land 

10.5. The submitted Economic Statement estimates that the proposed development would 
deliver an additional 3,100 new net additional full time equivalent jobs on and off site.  

10.6. With regards to Gross Value Added (GVA) Uplift from the expansion of the Science 
Park, it is estimated within the Economic Statement that the proposal would generate 
an additional total of £182 million per annum in GVA.  

10.7. It is therefore considered that intensifying development on the site for business (E(g) 
class) uses within the research led employment sector, as proposed, is acceptable in 
principle subject to compliance with all requirements of policy SP9 and the Local 
Plan as a whole. 

19



10 
 

b. Design and impact on views 

10.8. The NPPF makes it clear that the purpose of planning is to help achieve sustainable 
development (Section 2), and that design (Section 12) and effects on the natural 
environment (Section 15) are important components of this. 

10.9. Section 11 of the NPPF notes in paragraph 124 that in respect of development 
density the considerations should include whether a place is well designed and “the 
desirability of maintaining an area’s prevailing character and setting…or of promoting 
regeneration and change”. 

10.10. Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that decisions should ensure that developments 
will a) function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short 
term but over the lifetime of the development; b) are visually attractive as a result of 
good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping; c) are 
sympathetic in local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation or change (such as increased densities); d) establish or maintain a strong 
sense of place to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places and e) optimise 
the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix 
of development (including green and other public open space)  and support local 
facilities and transport networks; and f) create places that are safe, inclusive and 
accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity 
for existing and future users. 

10.11. Local Plan Policy DH1 requires developments to demonstrate high quality design 
and placemaking. 

10.12. With regards to the proposal’s response to the site itself and surrounding context, the 
proposed scale, massing and articulation would be read as a hard edge to the 
Science Park and this part of the City when viewed from the A4074 and Sandford. 
However, measures have been put in place to reduce the prominence of the 
buildings and soften the potential impact, such as an enhanced soft landscape buffer 
along the A4074 and the choice of recessive colours and roof plant screening in the 
form of vertical solar PV panels. When considered within the context of the site’s 
allocation for the intensification of employment development, the proposed 
relationship with the edge of the Science Park is considered acceptable in this 
instance.  

10.13. The proposed buildings at four storeys with a maximum height of 27m to the top of 
the mechanical plant screening would approximately double the existing amount of 
floorspace available on the Science Park. Whilst the extent of proposed densification 
would fundamentally change the character of the undeveloped plot, this is to be 
expected under the requirements of the site allocation. Buildings 1 and 2 would be 
sized at the upper end of existing individual building footprints on the Park which is 
considered in line with the surrounding context. Whilst building 3, with the attached 
multi storey car park, would be much greater in scale with a long roofscape, it has 
been tested in views from within the Park and due to its relationship with the circular 
Heatley Road and proposed planting, the full extent of built form would not be visible 
at any one time as illustrated in figure 3 below. Further, the hierarchy of crossed 
steel structures at the base (the colonnade), shaped and perforated aluminium fins 

20



11 
 

in the middle and an articulated plant screen in the form of vertical solar panels with 
thin-film PV modules at the top has successfully broken up the massing of each 
building when seen from within the Park. 

 

Figure 3: View of building 3 from Heatley Road 

10.14. The general principle of creating and prioritising pedestrian access from Heatley 
Road towards the middle of the site with servicing diverted to the side and around 
the back of the buildings is supported and signals a step change to the existing car 
centric character of the Park.  

10.15. The public realm between the buildings is well developed with a combination of hard 
landscaping, soft landscaping and permanent built shelters to facilitate outdoor 
working and socialising which is considered to work successfully. Further, the 
principle of a meadow landscape linking the proposed buildings to the wider Park is 
supported. It is positive that visitor cycle parking is conveniently located at the 
entrances, celebrating this sustainable mode of transport by making it visible and 
convenient. During the consideration of the application, the applicant has enhanced 
the landscape linking Heatley Road to the building frontages by creating a stepped 
area with additional opportunities for outside working, collaborating and socialising. 
This amendment has sought to create a more welcoming focal point within this part 
of the Park and prioritise pedestrian access to the buildings as shown in figure 4 
below.   

21



12 
 

 

Figure 4: Enhanced public realm between buildings 2 and 3 

10.16. As required by Local Plan policy DH2, the City Council will seek to retain significant 
views both within Oxford and from outside. In terms of long distance views from the 
City centre, looking out towards the application site, the submitted Landscape and 
Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) and Vu.City modelling that has been carried out 
internally demonstrates that the possibility of skylining in the St Mary’s Tower view is 
unlikely given the topography of the application site and surrounding area. With 
regards to more local views, and as mentioned above, the buildings would create a 
hard edge to the Science Park when viewed from the A4074 and Sandford. 
However, during the consideration of the application the applicant has incorporated a 
more dense line of mature trees along the southern boundary which would partially 
screen the buildings from these locations. Whilst it is not the intention to hide the 
proposed architecture which would positively signpost the Park, the proposed 
planting in addition to the recessive colours would nevertheless soften the impact on 
neighbouring Sandford which sits within the administrative area of South Oxfordshire 
District Council.  Proposed views of the buildings from A4074 and Sandford are 
copied below at figure 5: 

22



13 
 

 

 

 

Figure 5: Proposed local rendered views  

10.17. As demonstrated above, the proposal would impact on the surrounding historic 
environment i.e. Sandford with its historical links to Minchery and the land of the 
Science Park, however it is recognised that there have been changes through the 
latter half of the C20 as well as the early C21 which have altered this historic 
landscape and given that the site has been subject to a long standing site allocation, 
this scale of development with its associated economic benefits is to be expected 
within this context. For clarity, neither the site nor the neighbouirng areas are located 

23



14 
 

within a Conservation Area and the nearest listed building (Sandford House, Grade 
II) is located approximately 220m away within Sandford, to the south of the A4074 
and therefore there is no requirement to consider paragraphs 194-208 of the NPPF.   

10.18. Taking into account all of the above, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable 
in compliance with policies DH1 and DH2 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036.   

c. Archaeology 

10.19. Local Plan Policy DH4 states that where archaeological deposits and features are 
suspected to be present (including upstanding remains), applications should include 
sufficient information to define their character, significance and extent of such 
deposits so far as reasonably practical. 

10.20. The site is not of built heritage significance and in terms of below ground 
archaeological potential, the site was partially excavated in 1999 and demonstrated 
to have multi-period potential (prehistoric, Roman, Early Saxon, medieval) with 
potential for dispersed activity areas. However the published excavation report notes 
that the substantive parts of plots 23-26 were stripped to ‘archaeological levels’ 
under a watching brief and it is therefore considered that no further archaeological 
work is required in relation to the site in accordance with policy DH4.  

d. Impact on neighbouring amenity 

10.21. Policy H14 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036 requires new development to provide 
reasonable privacy, daylight and sunlight for occupants of both existing and new 
homes. Policy RE7 requires the amenity of neighbours to be protected with regards 
to visual privacy, outlook, sunlight, daylight and overshadowing and impacts of the 
construction phase. Policy RE8 seeks to control nuisance from noise. 

10.22. Immediate neighbours of the site include; Newman Place to the west, a residential 
development of 270 units currently under construction within blocks of up to four 
storeys. Building 1 sits approximately 100m from the nearest buildings at Newman 
Place with Littlemore Brook and mature woodland between the two sites. To the 
south of the A4070 lies the settlement of Sandford, with residential development 
located approximately 95m to the nearest proposed building. To the east of Grenoble 
Road lies a mobile home park with a distance of approximately 120m and existing 
woodland within the Science Park separating the two sites.  

Privacy 

10.23. Given the significant distances between the proposed development and surrounding 
residential development, as mentioned above, it is considered that the buildings 
would not compromise neighbouring privacy.  

Overbearing 

10.24. Whilst the proposal would be partially visible from Newman Place and Sandford, the 
distance between the plots would mitigate the potential for the buildings to have an 
overbearing impact on neighbours. Further, the applicant has amended the 
landscape proposals during the consideration of the application to ensure that the 
landscape buffer along the A4070 consists of more mature trees rather than 

24



15 
 

ornamental as originally proposed. This would aid in partially screening the building 
from Sandford, as illustrated at figure 6 below. 

 

Figure 6: Buffer planting along A4074 – indicative growth rate.  

10.25. The same can be said for the impact on Newman Place and the mobile home park to 
the east of Grenoble Road, the existing woodland buffers combined with the 
distances between the proposed buildings would avoid any unduly overbearing 
impact on neighbours. In addition, officers are mindful that the Oxford Science Park 
has been subject to a long standing allocation for employment use within the current 
and previous Local Plans and therefore reasonable intensification of the 
undeveloped plots is expected within this context.    

10.26. With regards to potential light pollution from the proposed buildings, it is difficult to 
ascertain the exact impact at this stage given that the proposal is speculative with no 
confirmed tenant at the time of writing. However, in order to achieve BREEAM 
Excellent, as required by Local Plan policy RE1, certain specifications need to be 
met including PIR lighting to turn off lights in unoccupied spaces, glazing with a light 
transmission of only 50%, blocking 50% of light and blinds that are 95% solid, 
allowing only 5% of light transmission. Further, and as mentioned above, the building 
would be partially screened from neighbours by existing and proposed planting. To 
ensure that the proposal does not unduly impact on neighbouring amenity in this 
regard, a lighting strategy would be conditioned. As an indication of the potential 
impact, figure 7 below shows a non-verified night time Building Information Modelling 
(BIM) view from Sandford: 

25



16 
 

 

Figure 7: Night time BIM view from Sandford  

10.27. In light of the above and subject to the sufficient discharging of the lighting strategy 
condition, the scheme is not considered to have a material impact on neighbouring 
amenity with regards to light pollution.  

Daylight/sunlight 

10.28. A solar study has been carried out as part of the submission and can be found within 
the Design and Access Statement. The study demonstrates that the proposal would 
not overshadow neighbouring buildings beyond the Science Park. Figure 8 below 
illustrates the overshadowing diagram for the winter solstice (worst case scenario).  

 

Figure 8: Solar study – Winter solstice 

26



17 
 

Construction phase 

10.29. In order to protect the amenity of neighbours during the construction process, a 
condition would be imposed to require the submission of a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan prior to the commencement of development. The 
Plan would identify the steps and procedures that would be implemented to minimise 
the creation and impact of noise, air quality, vibration, dust and waste disposal 
resulting from the site preparation, groundwork and construction phases of the 
development and manage Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) access to the site. 

10.30. Taking all of the above into account, it is concluded that the proposed development 
fully complies with policies RE7 and H14 of the Oxford Local Plan. 

e. Health and wellbeing 

10.31. Local Plan policy RE5 seeks to promote strong, vibrant and healthy communities and 
reduce health inequalities. The application has been supported by a Health Impact 
Assessment (HIA) which considers the health impacts of the proposed development 
based on the NHS London Healthy Urban Development Unit (HUDU) Rapid Health 
Impact Assessment (HIA) as required by policy RE5. 

10.32. With reference to the submitted London HUDU Rapid HIA Toolkit (NHS London 
Healthy Urban Development Unit, 2019), the proposed development would not give 
rise to material health and wellbeing impacts associated with environmental or socio-
economic changes during construction or operational stages. The proposed 
development is beneficial to health and wellbeing on the following basis: 

 Provision of 1,872 weeks of apprenticeships over 24 months of construction, 
providing opportunities for 41 apprentices, in addition to the construction 
phase potentially providing work experience to 8 people while also 
conducting 8 school visits/ career events;  

 delivery of highly skilled jobs once in operation; 

 encouragement of healthy behaviours by the provision of safe and secure 
cycle parking and changing and shower facilities; and 

 encouragement of social interaction between employees and visitors by 
creating welcoming open spaces such as the landscaped areas, outdoor 
working areas and the creation of the ‘Science Trail’.  

10.33. In light of the above, and the contents of this report as a whole, it is considered that 
the proposed development would comply with policy RE5 of the Oxford Local Plan 
2036.  

f. Highways and parking 

10.34. Oxford has the ambition to become a world class cycling city with improved air 
quality, reduced congestion and enhanced public realm. Road space within the city is 
clearly limited and to achieve its ambition there is a need to prioritise road space and 
promote the sustainable modes of travel. For non-residential development, the 
presumption will be that vehicle parking will be kept to the minimum necessary to 

27



18 
 

ensure the successful functioning of the development. Policies M1, M2, M3, M4 and 
M5 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036 seek to deliver these objectives. 

10.35. Policy M1 states that planning permission will only be granted for development that 
minimises the need to travel and is laid out and designed in a way that prioritises 
access by walking, cycling and public transport. In accordance with policy M2, a 
Transport Assessment for major developments should assess the impact of the 
proposed development and include mitigation measures to ensure no unacceptable 
impact on highway safety and the road network and sustainable transport modes are 
prioritised and encouraged. A Travel Plan, Delivery and Service Management Plan 
and Construction Management Plan are required for a development of this type and 
size. 

 Sustainability  

10.36. The site is adjacent to the areas of Littlemore, Greater Leys, Blackbird Leys and 
Sandford-on-Thames, all of which are within walking distance. The area has been 
known until relatively recently as unsustainable due to its lack of public transport and 
active travel options. However, as discussed in more detail below, the sustainability 
of the site is already improving and with proposed sustainable options within the 
immediate locale, the site is considered suitable by the highways authority for further 
development. In addition to these improvements, and as the Planning Committee will 
be aware, a mixed use development including approximately 3,000 dwellings is 
planned for the south side of Grenoble Road currently named the ‘South Oxford 
Science Village’ which falls with the administrative area of South Oxfordshire District 
Council. This mixed-use development would provide a large investment in 
sustainable transport options and increase the viability of schemes such as the 
Cowley Branch Line passenger rail service. Again, as the Planning Committee will be 
aware, there is a proposal for the Cowley Branch Line to be repurposed as a 
passenger service which will connect Oxford train station with Oxford Business Park, 
Oxford Science Park and Oxford Parkway train station/Park & Ride to London.  

10.37. Within a recent connectivity study by Phil Jones Associates, it was highlighted that 
active travel improvements to the new Branch Line station at the Science Park area 
were required, and with the high level of staff that will be commuting to the Science 
Park by active travel, it is considered that these are also required to enable further 
development to come forward in this area. Some of these are already planned and/or 
funded and will be implemented in the near future, these include: 

 Pedestrian and cycle link from the Science Park to Armstrong Road. 

 Improved pedestrian and cycle permeability and street lighting on Public Right of 
Way 281/1/40 connecting the Science Park to Minchery Farm. 

 New direct pedestrian and cycle route from Knights Road connecting the Science 
Park to Blackbird Leys. 

 Active travel improvements from Sandford-on-Thames along Church Road and 
towards Littlemore on Sandford Road. 

28



19 
 

10.38. It is considered that the improvements listed below are required in order to make 
active travel to the application site more attractive. Contributions towards these 
improvements have been requested either from this development or other upcoming 
schemes within the Science Park (plots 16, 18 and 27): 

 A new pedestrian/cycle crossing on Henley Road to allow easier access to the 
Science Park from Abingdon, Sandford-on-Thames and Littlemore. 

 A new shared use path along Brick Kiln Lane. 

 A safer crossing point at the Grenoble Road/Brick Kiln Lane roundabout which 
would allow pedestrians and cyclists to cross the A4074 slip road to join the 
shared use path on the northern side of Grenoble Road. 

 Upgrading of the cycle route from the Science Park through Littlemore as far as 
Giles Road. 

10.39. The Highways Authority had originally requested a financial contribution towards the 
installation of bollards at the entrance to PROW 281/1/40 from Grenoble Road to 
prevent fly tipping and unauthorised parking. Following discussions during the 
consideration of the application, it has been decided by the Highways Authority that it 
is more effective to action this outside of the planning process and therefore the 
application would not contribute towards the bollards as part of this application.  

 Access 

10.40. The proposed buildings would be accessed from the existing Science Park 
infrastructure which is considered acceptable by the highways authority. The 
highways authority originally advised that a pedestrian and cycle access is required 
from Grenoble Road into the site and has suggested that the existing construction 
access is kept open. However, this is proposed to be replanted as woodland 
following construction to achieve a net gain canopy cover which is given significant 
weight by officers. Further, there are no alternative locations for this extent of 
replanting within the Park due to requirements for biodiversity offsetting. Therefore it 
has been accepted by the Highways Authority that a secondary access cannot 
reasonably be achieved.  

 Trip generation and traffic impact 

10.41. The trip rates provided, as accepted by the Highways Authority, show 564 two-way 
vehicular trips (single occupancy cars plus car share drivers) in the AM peak and 503 
in the PM peak. The trip distribution shows approximately 75% of vehicles travelling 
west and the remaining 25% travelling east. 

10.42. These trips have been added to the network base line flows (2015) along with 
committed development on the Science Park to give us an understanding of the 
impact on the local junctions. The western roundabout, although starting to near 
capacity in the PM peak, was still operating sufficiently in 2022 including committed 
development. Work will be needed on these roundabouts in the future but are 
considered likely to be sufficient until the ‘South Oxford Science Village’ comes 
forward. The ARCADY model shows that the Henley Road/Brick Kiln Lane mini-

29



20 
 

roundabout operates within capacity in the AM peak hour but operates significantly 
over capacity in the PM peak as a result of the proposed development. The 
improvements to the active travel infrastructure, as listed above, are considered to 
sufficiently mitigate this impact however. The Highways Authority has also advised 
that if the ‘South Oxford Science Village’ does come forward, a new access directly 
onto the A4074 would be created, returning Brick Kiln Lane to a local road. 

 Cycle parking 

10.43. In accordance with appendix 7 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036, a minimum of 1 cycle 
parking space per 90sq. m. or 1 space per 5 staff are required for premises within 
business use, equating to a minimum of 462 spaces in this instance. The proposed 
development would provide 537 spaces and 29 showers with changing facilities, 
exceeding the policy requirement. Details of cycle parking is required prior to 
occupation of the buildings and therefore a condition would be attached to the 
planning permission. 

 Vehicular parking 

10.44. As above, the application proposes 883 vehicular parking spaces (including 20 visitor 
bays), equating to a mode share of 46% when based on the predicted number of 
staff to be on site at any one time. Officers and the highways authority do not 
consider that this level of parking fully complies with Local Plan policies as it is too 
high to sufficiently encourage the use of active and sustainable modes of transport. 
However, it is appreciated that the majority of Science Park staff live more than 10km 
away and it is not currently realistic to suggest that they travel to work by cycling, 
walking or by public transport given the improvements to local active and sustainable 
travel infrastructure are yet to come forward.   

10.45. As a result of discussions during the consideration of the application, the applicant 
has agreed to remove 200 parking bays once the Cowley Branch Line is operational 
with 2 trains per hour. It is anticipated by the Highways Authority that the Cowley 
Branch Line will run at 2 trains per hour from the day of opening in 2026. This 
reduction would equate to a total of 663 (not including visitor bays) and a staff mode 
share of 35.5% which is considered acceptable. The reduction in numbers would be 
secured by legal agreement. 

10.46. In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development complies with 
Local Plan policies M1, M2, M3, M4 and M5. 

g. Trees and landscaping 

10.47. Policy G7 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036 requires that any unavoidable loss of tree 
canopy cover should be mitigated by the planting of new trees or introduction of 
additional tree cover. Policy G8 continues that development proposals affecting 
existing Green Infrastructure features should demonstrate how these have been 
incorporated within the design of the new development where appropriate. 

10.48. As a result of the proposed development, 11 individual trees, 3 tree groups and 2 
hedges would be lost (all within categories B, C and U). It is considered that the 
immediate visual impact to landscape and views from proposed tree group removals 

30



21 
 

would be mitigatable through the proposed planting strategy. The existing landscape 
buffer to the southern boundary would not be significantly impacted by the proposed 
development.  

10.49. To enhance the soft landscaping within the site, the existing construction access 
road to the north east corner of the site would be closed and replanted as woodland. 
Further, the existing gap in vegetation along the A4074, along the south west 
boundary of the site, would be filled in. The proposed tree strategy is considered 
appropriate and utilises a suite of tree species, which have various typologies and 
performance characteristics that are deployed according to the hierarchy of public 
realm typologies created in the proposed scheme; i.e. their land use and the space 
available. Detailed landscape designs would be conditioned to enable a full appraisal 
of the landscape scheme’s qualities. 

10.50. The Council’s Green Spaces Technical Advice Note (TAN) requires a Tree Canopy 
Cover Assessment to be submitted for various types of applications. For major non-
residential developments, it needs to be demonstrated that there would be no net 
loss in canopy cover compared with a no development baseline scenario + 25 years. 
The submitted assessment states that there would be an 8.2% net increase in tree 
canopy cover after 25 years, equating to 62% of the total site area. Please refer to 
figure 9 below for reference.  

 

Figure 9: Tree canopy cover after 30 years (light green denotes areas with 

proposed planting) 

10.51. In light of the above, the proposals are considered to meet the requirements under 
Local Plan policies G7 and G8 and the Green Spaces TAN.   

h. Sustainable design and construction 

10.52. The Council is committed to tackling the causes of climate change by ensuring 
developments use less energy and assess the opportunities for using renewable 

31



22 
 

energy technologies. As such, policy RE1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036 requires 
schemes to incorporate a number of sustainable design and construction principles. 

10.53. Policy RE1 requires developments for new build non-residential development of over 
1,000sq. m. to achieve at least a 40% reduction in carbon emissions from a 2013 
Building Regulations (or future equivalent legislation) compliant base case. As the 
Planning Committee will be aware, the new 2021 building regulations were 
introduced in June 2022 and form the basis of the submitted Energy Statement. 

10.54. The submitted Energy Statement has been developed using a ‘fabric first’ approach 
which includes insulation, suitable glazing to limit solar gain where appropriate, 
mechanical ventilation and active cooling. The proposed buildings would be served 
by Air Source Heat Pumps (ASHP) and solar PV panels would be placed on all roofs. 
Specifications and large scale details of the solar panels would be conditioned to 
ensure they do not detract from visual amenity.  

10.55. The scheme would achieve an average overall reduction in carbon emissions by 
40.2%. 

10.56. In light of the above, it is considered that the proposal complies with the 
requirements of policy RE1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036, subject to the submission 
of an addendum to the statement. 

i. Air Quality 

10.57. Policy RE6 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036 requires new development to mitigate its 
impact on air quality and minimise or reduce exposure to poor air quality. 

10.58. The baseline assessment shows that the application site is located within the Oxford 
city-wide Air Quality Management Area (AQMA), declared by Oxford City Council for 
exceedances of the annual mean NO2 air quality objective (AQO). Analysis of 
DEFRA’s Urban background maps and of all pollutant concentrations at monitoring 
locations in the surrounding area of the application site, show clear compliance with 
all relevant air quality objectives for NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 concentrations. 
Therefore, the location of the application site is considered suitable for its intended 
use without mitigation. 

10.59. As outlined within the sustainable design and construction section above, the 
proposed development would be all electric, utilising zero emission technologies. 
Each building would incorporate a significant horizontal PV array on a deck above 
the rooftop plant and a vertical array on the roof plant enclosure façade. As no 
combustion sources are proposed during normal operation, no local air quality 
impacts are anticipated. 

10.60. The submitted Air Quality Assessment (AQA) states that all proposed fume 
cupboards would be designed in line with BS EN14175 and as such, any impacts to 
air quality are considered to be negligible with no mitigation measures required. A 
condition would however secure that the proposed development is constructed in 
complete accordance with the submitted AQA.  

10.61. With regards to proposed parking arrangements, the scheme would provide 25% of 
all spaces with Electric Vehicle charging points with adequate ducting to be provided 

32



23 
 

to all spaces to cater for future demand as required by Local Plan policy M4 and 
such provision would be secured by condition.  

10.62. The impacts of construction work on dust soiling and ambient fine particulate matter 
concentrations have been assessed in the AQA, and the risk of dust causing a loss 
of local amenity and increased exposure to PM10 concentrations has been used to 
identify appropriate mitigation measures. Measures include the implementation of a 
Dust Management Plan, undertaking daily site inspections and agreeing monitoring 
locations with the Local Authority. The proposed mitigation measures would be 
secured by condition.  

10.63. The results of the operational phase traffic impact assessment indicate that the 
impact on NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 concentrations at all nearby existing sensitive 
receptors would be negligible and therefore no mitigation is required. A Site 
Suitability Assessment of NO2 concentrations at proposed sensitive receptors at the 
facades of the proposed buildings and along the site boundary has also been 
completed. The modelled NO2 concentrations from the dispersion model are below 
the annual mean AQO for NO2, and the 1-hour mean NO2 is not predicted to be 
exceeded at any proposed sensitive receptor, or at the application site boundary. As 
such, mitigation measures are not required for the operational phase of the proposed 
development. 

10.64. In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development complies with 
Local Plan Policy RE6, subject to suggested conditions set out at section 12 below. 

j. Noise 

10.65. Policy RE8 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036 requires new developments to manage 
noise in order to safeguard or improve amenity, health, and quality of life for local 
communities. 

10.66. The application site is situated immediately north of the A4074. The nearest existing 
noise sensitive receptors have been identified as residential dwellings on Keene 
Close, situated within Sandford to the south of the A4074. To the north and west of 
the site is the partially occupied residential development at Newman Place.  

10.67. The submitted acoustic assessment adequately predicts plant noise levels as being 
below the existing background noise level at the identified receptors taking into 
consideration distance losses, surface acoustic reflections and, where applicable, 
screening provided by the proposed buildings. The calculations show that the noise 
criteria of the proposed plant strategy will meet the Local Authority criteria during the 
operating period and should not have an adverse impact on the nearest sensitive 
receivers. Conditions requiring proposed plant noise to fall below existing local 
background levels and the installation of anti-vibration isolators would be attached to 
any planning permission to ensure that amenity of occupiers and neighbours is 
protected. 

10.68. In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development complies with 
Local Plan Policy RE8. 

 

33



24 
 

k. Land quality 

10.69. The Council has a statutory duty to take into account, as a material consideration, 
the actual or possible presence of contamination on land. As a minimum, following 
development, land should not be capable of being determined as contaminated land, 
meaning the contamination poses an unacceptable risk to human health or the 
environment, under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. In accordance 
with policy RE9 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036, a Phase 1 Desk Study and 
contaminated land questionnaire was submitted as part of the application. 

10.70. Historical mapping indicates that parts of the site and immediate surrounding areas 
may have been subject to historical contaminative uses and may also include areas 
of made ground (an area where the pre-existing land surface is raised by artificial 
deposits) and landfill. These could give rise to potential contamination risks, as 
acknowledged within the submitted Geotechnical and Geo-environmental Desktop 
Study report. Due to the low to moderate potential contamination risks identified on 
site, there is a requirement to conduct a detailed intrusive site investigation to 
quantify potential contamination risks and determine what remedial works may be 
required to mitigate any significant risks and render the site suitable for the proposed 
use.  

10.71. It is considered that, subject to conditions set out within section 12 below, the 
proposed development would comply with Local Plan policy RE9.  

l. Flood risk and drainage 

10.72. Local Plan policy RE3 requires applications for development within flood zone 2 to 
be accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) demonstrating that the 
proposed development will not increase flood risk on or off site; and safe access and 
egress in the event of a flood can be provided; and details of the necessary 
mitigation measures to be implemented have been provided. 

10.73. As part of the Local Plan preparation, all site allocations were assessed through the 
sequential test, which informed the permitted uses and quantum of development as 
appropriate. Therefore, in accordance with paragraph 166 of the NPPF, the applicant 
need not apply the sequential test again.  

10.74. As above, the site falls partially within flood zones 2 and 3 with development taking 
place only within the outer edges of flood zone 2. The majority of the development, 
including the buildings, is situated at a level significantly above the flood extents, with 
only the lower car park and service road falling within flood zone 2. A wall is 
proposed in front of the car park which would be above the modelled flood level, and 
as such would provide protection from inundation. A flood evacuation plan has been 
provided to address residual risk, the measures in which must be included and 
enacted at the suitable point in the development. A flood model and modelling report 
has been undertaken which concludes that the modelled flood levels differ from 
those provided by the EA, however the EA has commented that the submitted 
modelling by Edenvale and Young confirms the site is affected by flood events 
greater than 0.1% annual exceedance probability, which ties in with the EAs detailed 
modelling. The EA has recommended a condition specifying finished floor levels, 

34



25 
 

compensation measures and that there are no modifications to ground levels – 
please refer to section 12 below.  

10.75. Local Plan policy RE4 requires all development proposals to manage surface water 
through Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) or techniques to limit run-off and 
reduce the existing rate of run-off on previously developed sites. Surface water 
runoff should be managed as close to its source as possible. 

10.76. The site falls within the area included in the site wide drainage strategy for the 
Oxford Science Park devised for the original plans, with an allowance of 145l/s, 
eventually discharging to the Littlemore Brook. This would be split into two sub 
catchments within the site discharging at 70 and 75l/s, due to the site layout and 
levels. A variety of drainage features are proposed to provide attenuation in order to 
limit outflow to 145l/s, including permeable paving, rain gardens, a detention basin, 
and storage tanks/oversized pipes. Limited infiltration potential has been identified 
on the site from infiltration testing, but a number of the drainage features are unlined 
to facilitate infiltration where viable.  

10.77. In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development complies with 
the requirements of policies RE3 and RE4 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036.  

m. Ecology 

10.78. Local Plan policy G2 states that development that results in a net loss of sites and 
species of ecological value will not be permitted. On sites where there are species 
and habitats of importance for biodiversity that do not meet criteria for individual 
protection, development will only be granted where a) there is an exceptional need 
for the new development and the need cannot be met by development on an 
alternative site with less biodiversity interest; and b) adequate onsite mitigation 
measures to achieve a net gain of biodiversity are proposed; and c) offsite 
compensation can be secured via legal obligation. Compensation and mitigation 
measures must offset the loss and achieve an overall net gain for biodiversity of 5% 
or more from the existing situation and for major development this should be 
demonstrated using a biodiversity calculator.  Section 98 and Schedule 14 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 2021 that require biodiversity of 10% is not yet in force 
and the policy therefore prevails.   

10.79. The woodland is the primary habitat of interest within the application site and as part 
of the proposals, the retained woodland would be enhanced. The grassland is largely 
species poor and the National Vegetation Classification survey confirmed that 
communities present are of limited ecological interest, characteristic of heavily 
managed recreational swards. The only notable plant species found, the bee orchid, 
would be translocated elsewhere within the application site which is welcomed. A 
Construction Ecological Management Plan would be secured by condition and would 
include translocation details.  

10.80. Protected species – reptiles: Natural England’s guidance on Reptiles: advice for 
making planning decisions, is a material consideration to take into account when 
making planning decisions. The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 provides it is an 
offence to kill or injure slow worm.  The Local Planning Authority must have regard, 
in exercising its functions, to conserve, restore and enhance biodiversity (section 40 

35



26 
 

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006).  Slow worms are on the 
Secretary of State’s published list of living organisms (under section 41) that are of 
principal importance for the purpose of conserving biodiversity. Natural England’s 
guidance provides that the Local Planning Authority need to consider if the 
Developer has taken appropriate measures to avoid, mitigate and, as a last resort, 
compensate for any negative effects on reptiles in their development proposal.   

10.81. Low numbers of slow worms were recorded during site surveys (with a peak count of 
2 individuals) and as part of the proposals, they would be translocated to a suitable 
receptor site within the Science Park as agreed with the Council’s ecologist. These 
measures would be in accordance with the above guidance and legislation and it is 
considered likely that Natural England would grant a licence in these circumstances. 

10.82. In terms of Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG), the proposals would result in a loss of 4.64 
habitat units (-17.94%) and a gain of 1.44 hedgerow units (+52.25%) within the 
application site. The loss in habitat units would be offset by enhancing grassland in 
four off-site locations within the Science Park (please see figure 10 below). Taking 
this into account, the project as a whole would deliver an increase of 1.54 habitat 
units (+5.95%) and would therefore comply with the requirements of policy G2. The 
proposed net gain would be secured through a section 106 legal agreement.  

 

Figure 10: Biodiversity off-setting locations (outlined in orange, green, yellow 

and blue) 

10.83. Given the scale of development and quantity of car parking spaces and associated 
traffic movements proposed, a project-level Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 
was carried out to assess the potential impact on the Oxford Meadows Special Area 
of Conservation (SAC) (known as Port Meadow) through changes in air quality. 

36



27 
 

10.84. It has been demonstrated that the predicted change in traffic flows adjacent to the 
SAC would be less than 1,000 annual average daily traffic flow (AADT) when taking 
into account this proposal and the cumulative impact of recently consented and 
implemented local schemes. Therefore, it is considered that the proposed 
development would not give rise to likely significant effects on the Oxford Meadows 
SAC. This is supported by a comment from Natural England submitted in October 
2022, which advised Oxford City Council that a likely significant effect can be ruled 
out.  

10.85. Taking into account all of the above, it is considered that the proposed development 
complies with the requirements of Local Plan policy G2.  

n. Utilities 

10.86. Local Plan Policy V8 requires developers to explore existing capacity (and 
opportunities for extending it) with the appropriate utilities providers. 

10.87. The submitted Utilities Statement confirms that Thames Water has network capacity 
to supply the site without ‘off-site’ reinforcements. To mitigate any future issues or 
fluctuations on the network which could result in not obtaining a constant flow rate to 
support the building loads, the project team has designed a storage tank option 
which serves as a buffer store which would pick up any peak loads during the day 
allowing the tank to replenish.  

10.88. Due to the buildings being fully electric, there is no requirement for a natural gas 
supply to any of the buildings.  

10.89. Currently, a High Voltage network cable runs across the site which would constrain 
development, therefore the project team has obtained a quotation from SSE to divert 
this cable and provide a new primary sub-station on land fronting Grenoble Road, 
under the ownership of the applicant.  

10.90. The site telecoms infrastructure would be extended from the existing infrastructure 
installed throughout TOSP.  Each new building would be provided with high speed 
Ethernet connections for both landlord and tenant use.  

10.91. The proposal therefore complies with policy V8 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 

o. Planning obligations 

10.92. It is considered that the following matters should be secured through a section 106 
legal agreement: 

 Contribution of £938,312.04 towards bus services serving the Oxford Science 
Park. 

 Contribution of £499,080 towards active travel improvements. 

 Fee of £2,563 for Travel Plan monitoring. 

 Agreement to remove 200 car parking bays once the Cowley Branch Line 
Passenger Service is operating at 2 trains per hour. 

 A requirement that tenancy agreements shall include the loss of parking 

37



28 
 

spaces and that tenants shall be sufficiently notified. 

 Biodiversity off-setting to ensure a net gain of 5% is achieved.  

 

11. CONCLUSION 

11.1. Having regards to the matters discussed in the report, officers would make members 
aware that the starting point for the consideration of this application is in accordance 
with Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which makes 
clear that proposals should be assessed in accordance with the development plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  

11.2. The NPPF recognises the need to take decisions in accordance with Section 38 (6) 
but also makes clear that it is a material consideration in the determination of any 
planning application (paragraph 2). The main aim of the NPPF is to deliver 
Sustainable Development, with paragraph 11 the key principle for achieving this aim. 
The NPPF also goes on to state that development plan policies should be given due 
weight depending on their consistency with the aims and objectives of the 
Framework. The relevant development plan policies are considered to be consistent 
with the NPPF.  

11.3. Therefore it would be necessary to consider the degree to which the proposal 
complies with the policies of the development plan as a whole and whether there are 
any material considerations, such as the NPPF, which are inconsistent with the result 
of the application of the development plan as a whole. 

11.4. Officers consider that the proposed development to provide additional floorspace for 
research and development purposes would respond appropriately to the site context 
and Local Plan allocation. The proposal would provide improved transport 
infrastructure through financial contributions and it is considered that there would be 
no harm to the highway network as a result of traffic generation. The development 
would result in a net gain in tree canopy cover through new and retained soft 
landscaping and a Biodiversity Net Gain of 5% as required by policy. 

11.5. The proposal would generate additional employment and a boost to the local 
economy. 

11.6. The scheme would accord with the Local Plan policies with regards to the natural 
environment and in turn would help to achieve a healthy community. 

11.7. In terms of any material considerations which may outweigh these development plan 
policies, the NPPF has a presumption in favour of sustainable development. NPPF 
paragraph 11 states that proposals that accord with the development plan should be 
approved without delay, or where the development plan is absent, silent, or relevant 
plans are out of date, granting permission unless any adverse impacts would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the 
policies in the Framework taken as a whole; or specific policies in the framework 
indicate development should be restricted. Policy S1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036 
repeats this. 

38



29 
 

11.8. Officers consider that the proposal would accord with the overall aims and objectives 
of the NPPF and policy S1 for the reasons set out within the report. Therefore in 
such circumstances, planning permission should be approved without delay. This is 
a significant material consideration in favour of the proposal. 

11.9. Officers would advise members that having considered the application carefully 
including all representations made with respect to the application, that the proposal 
is considered to be acceptable in terms of the aims and objectives of the NPPF, and 
relevant policies of the Oxford Local Plan 2016-2036, when considered as a whole, 
and that there are no material considerations that would outweigh these policies. 

11.10. It is recommended that the Committee resolve to grant planning permission for the 
development proposed subject to the conditions in section 12 below and to the 
satisfactory completion (under authority delegated to the Head of Planning Services) 
of a legal agreement under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
and other enabling powers.. 

12. CONDITIONS 

Time limit 
 

1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than 
the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: In accordance with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by the Planning Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Approved plans 
 

2. Subject to other conditions requiring updated or revised documents submitted with 
the application, the development permitted shall be constructed in complete 
accordance with the specifications in the application and approved plans listed 
below, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To avoid doubt and to ensure an acceptable development as indicated 
on the submitted drawings in accordance with policy S1 of the Oxford Local Plan 
2016-2036. 
 
Large scale details – fins 
 

3. Prior to the commencement of above ground works, large scale drawings of the 
proposed vertical fins including a detailed materials palette and confirmation of the 
proposed finish shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Only the approved details shall be carried out unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure a sympathetic appearance of the proposed development in 
accordance with policy DH1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Details of generators, sub-stations and water tanks  
 

39



30 
 

4. Prior to the commencement of above ground works, detailed plans and elevations 
of all generator enclosures, sub-stations and water tank enclosures shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the 
approved details shall be carried out unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure a sympathetic appearance of the proposed development in 
accordance with policy DH1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Materials 

 
5. Prior to above ground works, large scale sample panels of the following shall be 

erected on site and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the 
relevant parts of the work are commenced. The development shall be completed 
in accordance with the approved sample panels which, where feasible, shall 
remain on site for the duration of the development works: 

 
a) All new external materials demonstrating the colour and texture; 
b) Fins; 
c) Mechanical plant screening; 
d) All new hard landscaping; 
e) Street furniture; and 
f) Lighting. 

 
Reason: To ensure high quality development and in the interests of the visual 
appearance in accordance with policies DH1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2016-2036. 

 
 Solar panels 
 

6. Prior to installation, large scale drawn details and specifications of the proposed 
vertical and horizontal solar PV panels shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the approved details shall be carried 
out unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To ensure a sympathetic appearance of the proposed development in 
accordance with policy DH1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Green roofs 
 

7. Prior to installation, specifications of and a maintenance plan for the proposed 
green roofs shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved details shall be implemented prior to occupation and 
maintained thereafter. 
 
Reason: To ensure the longevity of this new green infrastructure in accordance 
with policy G8 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Lighting strategy 
 

8. Prior to above ground works a comprehensive lighting strategy, including means 

40



31 
 

to control light spillage and glare from both internal and external light sources, to 
meet the general standards of BS5489-1:2020, serving the entire scheme shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy 
shall also: 
 

a) Identify those areas/ features that are particularly sensitive for bats and that 
are likely to cause disturbance in or around breeding sites and resting 
places or along important routes used to access key areas of their territory, 
for example, for foraging; and 

b) Show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the 
provision of appropriate lighting contour plans and technical specifications) 
so that it can be clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or 
prevent the above species using their territory or having access to their 
breeding sites and resting places.  

 
Only the approved details shall be carried out, and they shall be retained 
thereafter, unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure a sympathetic appearance of the proposed development and 
enhance the safety and amenity of residents in accordance with policies RE7 and 
DH1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036 and to comply with the Conservation of 
Habitats Regulations 2017 (as amended) and The Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981 (as amended). 
 
Park Mark accreditation 
 

9. Prior to the occupation of the proposed parking areas, an application shall be 
made to Thames Valley Police for Park Mark accreditation. The development shall 
not be occupied or used until confirmation of Park Mark accreditation has been 
received and acknowledged in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure the safety and amenity of occupiers and visitors in accordance 
with policy RE7 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Security of service yard for building 3 
 

10. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, amended plans 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
demonstrating how the service yard for building 3 will be secured against 
unauthorised vehicle and pedestrian access. The development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with approved details unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure the safety and amenity of occupiers and visitors in accordance 
with policy RE7 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 

 
Phased contaminated land assessment 
 

11. Prior to the commencement of the development a phased risk assessment shall 
be carried out by a competent person in accordance with relevant British 

41



32 
 

Standards and the Environment Agency's Land Contamination Risk Management 
(LCRM) procedures for managing land contamination. Each phase shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. 

 
Phase 1 has been completed and approved. 
Phase 2 shall include a comprehensive intrusive investigation in order to 
characterise the type, nature and extent of contamination present, the risks to 
receptors and to inform the remediation strategy proposals. 
 
Phase 3 requires that a remediation strategy, validation plan, and/or monitoring 
plan be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority to 
ensure the site will be suitable for its proposed use. 
 
Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is identified and 
adequately addressed to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use in 
accordance with the requirements of policy RE9 of the Oxford Local Plan 2016 - 
2036. 
 
Land quality – remedial works 
 

12. The development shall not be occupied until any approved remedial works have 
been carried out and a full validation report has been submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that any soil and water contamination is identified and 
adequately addressed to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use in 
accordance with the requirements of policy RE9 of the Oxford Local Plan 2016 - 
2036. 
 
Land quality – unexpected contamination 
 

13. Any contamination that is found during the course of construction of the approved 
development that was not previously identified shall be reported immediately to 
the local planning authority. Development on that part of the site affected shall be 
suspended and a risk assessment carried out by a competent person and 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Where 
unacceptable risks are found, remediation and verification schemes shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These 
approved schemes shall be carried out before the development (or relevant phase 
of development) is resumed or continued.  
 
Reason: To ensure that any soil and water contamination is identified and 
adequately addressed to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use in 
accordance with the requirements of policy RE9 of the Oxford Local Plan 2016 - 
2036. 

  
 Landscape plan 
 

14. The development, hereby approved, shall be carried out in complete accordance 
with the following plans and documents: 

42



33 
 

 

 Landscape general arrangement plan, site-wide  
(dwg. no. 3241.MA.1000) 

 Landscape general arrangement plan, sheet 1 of 5 
(dwg. no. 3241.MA.1001 Rev A 12.12.22) 

 Landscape general arrangement plan, sheet 2 of 5 
(dwg. no. 3241.MA.1002) 

 Landscape general arrangement plan, sheet 3 of 5 
(dwg. no. 3241.MA.1003 Rev. A 12.12.22) 

 Landscape general arrangement plan, sheet 4 of 5  
(dwg. no. 3241.MA.1004) 

 Landscape general arrangement plan, sheet 5 of 5  
(dwg. no. 3241.MA.1005) 

 Landscape Detail Areas – B1 & B2 Amenity Space (dwg. no. 
3241.MA.1006) 

 Landscape Detail Areas – B2 & B3 Entrance Plaza (dwg. no. 
3241.MA.1008) 

 Landscape Detail Areas – Southern Boundary Trees (dwg. no. 
3241.MA.1009) 

 Landscape Elevation - Southern Boundary Trees (dwg. no. 3241.MA.4002) 
 

 Landscape Plan (dwg. No. 3241.MA.1010) 

 Planting Plan, site-wide (dwg. no. 3241.MA.2000) 

 Planting Plan, sheet 1 of 5 (dwg. no. 3241.MA.2001) 

 Planting Plan, sheet 2 of 5 (dwg. no. 3241.MA.2002) 

 Planting Plan, sheet 3 of 5 (dwg. no. 3241.MA.2003) 

 Planting Plan, sheet 4 of 5 (dwg. no. 3241.MA.2004) 

 Planting Plan, sheet 5 of 5 (dwg. no. 3241.MA.2005) 

 Plant Schedule (dwg. no. 3241.MA.2006) 
 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance policy G8 of the Oxford 
Local Plan 2036. 
 
Landscape plan – implementation 
 

15. The landscaping proposals as approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be 
carried out no later than the first planting season after first occupation or first use 
of the development hereby approved unless otherwise agreed in writing 
beforehand by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with policies DH1 and G8 
of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 

 
           Landscape proposals – reinstatement 
 

16. Any existing retained trees, or new trees or plants planted in accordance with the 
details of the approved landscape proposals that fail to establish, are removed, 
die or become seriously damaged or defective within a period of five years after 
first occupation or first use of the development hereby approved shall be replaced. 

43



34 
 

They shall be replaced with others of a species, size and number as originally 
approved during the first available planting season unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with policies G7, G8 and 
DH1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Landscape management plan 
 

17. Prior to first occupation or first use of the development hereby approved a 
landscape management plan, including long term design objectives, management 
responsibilities and maintenance schedules and timing for all landscape areas, 
other than small, privately owned domestic gardens, shall be submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The landscape management 
plan shall be carried out as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and the appearance of the area in accordance 
with policy RE7 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 

 
Landscape surface design – tree roots 
 

18. No hard landscape works shall be carried out until details of the design of all new 
hard surfaces and a method statement for their construction shall first have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and the 
hard surfaces shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details unless 
otherwise agreed in writing beforehand by the Local Planning Authority. The 
details shall take into account the need to avoid any excavation within the Root 
Protection Area of any retained tree and where appropriate the Local Planning 
Authority will expect "no-dig" techniques to be used, which require hard surfaces 
to be constructed on top of existing soil levels in accordance with the current 
British Standard 5837: ‘’Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction 
– Recommendations’’. 
 
Reason: To avoid damage to the roots of retained trees in accordance with policy 
G7 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Arboricultural Monitoring Programme (AMP) 
 

19. Prior to the commencement of development, details of an Arboricultural 
Monitoring Plan (AMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The AMP shall include a schedule of a monitoring and 
reporting programme of all on-site supervision and checks of compliance with the 
details of the Tree Protection Plan and/ or Arboricultural Method Statement, as 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The AMP shall include details of an 
appropriate Arboricultural Clerk of Works (ACoW) who shall conduct such 
monitoring and supervision, and a written and photographic record shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority at scheduled intervals in accordance 
with the approved AMP.  The AMP shall be implemented as approved unless 
otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

44



35 
 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with policies G7, G8 and 
DH1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 

 
Underground services – tree roots 
 

20. Prior to the commencement of development, details of the location of all 
underground services and soakaways shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The location of underground services and 
soakaways shall take account of the need to avoid excavation within the Root 
Protection Areas of retained trees as defined in the current British Standard 5837 
‘‘Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction - Recommendations”. 
Works shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless 
otherwise agreed in writing beforehand by the local planning authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with policies G7, G8 and 
DH1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement 
 

21. The development, hereby approved, shall be carried out in complete accordance 
with the submitted Arboricultural Method Statement incl. Tree Protection Plan 
(Ligna Consultancy, Ref. P2486-AMS01 V1, 24.08.2022). 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with policies G7, G8 and 
DH1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 

 
Dust mitigation measures 
 

22. Prior to the commencement of development a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP), including the complete list of site specific dust 
mitigation measures and recommendations that are identified on Table 16 (pages 
35-37) of the submitted Air Quality Assessment, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
carried out in complete accordance with the approved details unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the overall dust impacts during the construction phase of 
the proposed development will remain as ‘’not significant’’, in accordance with the 
results of the dust assessment, and with Policy RE6 of the Oxford Local Plan 
2036. 
 
EV Charging  
 

23. Prior to installation, details of the Electric Vehicle charging infrastructure that is 
proposed to be installed on-site shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the following: 

 Location of EV charging points 

 Charging points to cover at least 25% of the total parking provision 

45



36 
 

 Appropriate cable provision to prepare for increased demand in future    
years. 

The electric vehicle infrastructure shall be formed, and laid out in accordance with 
approved details before the development is first occupied and shall remain in 
place thereafter. 
 
Reason: To contribute to improving local air quality in accordance with policies M4 
and RE6 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Fume cupboards and extract flues 
 

24. Prior to the installation of the fume cupboards and extract flues, written 
confirmation clearly demonstrating that all fume cupboards and extract flues have 
been, designed in line with BS EN14175, in order to guarantee sufficient 
dispersion of discharge shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The submission shall include proof that flues will terminate at 
least 3m above the highest point of the building, and that the discharge velocity 
from fume cupboard extracts are of at least 10 m/s, to ensure the discharge will 
not be trapped in the aerodynamic wake of the stack.  Only the approved fume 
cupboards and extract flues shall be installed and they shall be retained thereafter 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To contribute to improving local air quality in accordance with policy RE6 
of the Oxford Local Plan 2036.  
 
Noise emission 
 

25. The rating level of the noise emitted from the proposed installation of mechanical 
plant located at the site shall not exceed the existing background level at any 
noise sensitive premises when measured and corrected in accordance with 
BS4142:2014+A1:2019 ‘’Methods for rating and assessing industrial and 
commercial sound’’. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the amenity of occupiers and neighbours of the 
development site is not adversely affected by noise in accordance with policies 
RE7 and RE8 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Anti-vibration isolators 
 

26. Prior to first occupation, the proposed plant installation and ducting at the 
development shall be mounted with proprietary anti-vibration isolators and fan 
motors shall be vibration isolated from the casing and adequately silenced and 
maintained as such. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the amenity of occupiers and neighbours of the 
development site is not adversely affected by noise in accordance with policies 
RE7 and RE8 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
 
 

46



37 
 

Foul water 
 

27. The development shall not be occupied until confirmation has been provided to 
the Local Planning Authority in writing that either:- 1. All foul water network 
upgrades required to accommodate the additional flows from the development 
have been completed; or- 2. A development and infrastructure phasing plan has 
been agreed with the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Thames Water 
to allow development to be occupied. Where a development and infrastructure 
phasing plan is agreed, no occupation shall take place other than in accordance 
with the agreed development and infrastructure phasing plan. 
Reason: Network reinforcement works may be required to accommodate the 
proposed development. Any reinforcement works identified will be necessary in 
order to avoid sewage flooding and/or potential pollution incidents. 
 
Construction within 5m of strategic water main 
 

28. No construction shall take place within 5m of the water main. Information detailing 
how the developer intends to divert the asset/ align the development, so as to 
prevent the potential for damage to subsurface potable water infrastructure, shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with Thames Water. Any construction must be undertaken in 
accordance with the terms of the approved information. Unrestricted access must 
be available at all times for the maintenance and repair of the asset during and 
after the construction works. 
 
Reason: The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground strategic 
water main, utility infrastructure. The works has the potential to impact on local 
underground water utility infrastructure. 
 
Water network capacity 
 

29. No development shall be occupied until confirmation has been provided in writing 
to the Local Planning Authority that either:- 1) all water network upgrades required 
to accommodate the additional demand to serve the development have been 
completed; or 2) – a development and infrastructure phasing plan has been 
agreed with Thames Water to allow development to be occupied. Where a 
development and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed no occupation shall take 
place other than in accordance with the agreed development and infrastructure 
phasing plan. 
 
Reason: The development may lead to no/ low water pressure and network 
reinforcement works are anticipated to be necessary to ensure that sufficient 
capacity is made available to accommodate additional demand anticipated from 
the new development. 
 
BREEAM 
 

30. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the full BREEAM 
assessment, confirming the achievement of a level of Excellent shall be provided 
to and confirmed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

47



38 
 

 
Reason: To ensure the development incorporates sustainable construction and 
operational measures in compliance with policy RE1 of the Oxford Local Plan 
2036. 
 
Energy Statement 
 

31. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in complete accordance 
with the approved Energy Statement (Hoare Lea, Sustainability Energy Strategy 
Revision 01, 25th August 2022). 
 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development sufficiently incorporates 
sustainable design and construction principles in accordance with policy RE1 of 
the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Travel Plan 
 

32. Prior to first occupation a Full Travel Plan should be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To promote sustainable modes of transport in accordance with policy M1 
of the Oxford Local Plan 2036.  
 
Cycle parking 
 

33. Prior to the commencement of above ground works, details of the cycle parking 
areas, including dimensions and means of enclosure, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be 
brought into use until the cycle parking areas and means of enclosure have been 
provided within the site in accordance with the approved details and thereafter the 
areas shall be retained solely for the purpose of the parking of cycles. 
 
Reason: To encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport in line with 
policy M5 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Construction Traffic Management Plan 
 

34. Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction Traffic Management 
Plan (CTMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The CTMP shall identify; 

 The CTMP must be appropriately titled, include the site and planning 
permission reference number. 

 Routing of construction traffic and delivery vehicles is required to be 
shown and signed appropriately to the necessary 
standards/requirements. This includes means of access into the site. 

 Details of and approval of any road closures needed during construction. 

 Details of and approval of any traffic management needed during 
construction. 

48



39 
 

 Details of wheel cleaning/wash facilities – to prevent mud etc, in vehicle 
tyres/wheels, from migrating onto adjacent highway. 

 Details of appropriate signing, to accord with the necessary 
standards/requirements, for pedestrians during construction works, 
including any footpath diversions. 

 The erection and maintenance of security hoarding / scaffolding if 
required. 

 A regime to inspect and maintain all signing, barriers etc. 

 Contact details of the Project Manager and Site Supervisor responsible 
for on-site works to be provided. 

 The use of appropriately trained, qualified and certificated banksmen for 
guiding vehicles/unloading etc. 

 No unnecessary parking of site related vehicles (worker transport etc) in 
the vicinity – details of where these will be parked and occupiers 
transported to/from site to be submitted for consideration and approval. 
Areas to be shown on a plan not less than 1:500. 

 Layout plan of the site that shows structures, roads, site storage, 
compound, pedestrian routes etc. 

 A before-work commencement highway condition survey and agreement 
with a representative of the Highways Depot – contact 0845 310 1111.  

 Final correspondence is required to be submitted. 

 Local residents to be kept informed of significant deliveries and liaised 
with through the project. Contact details for person to whom issues 
should be raised with in the first instance to be provided and a record 
kept of these and subsequent resolution. 

 Any temporary access arrangements to be agreed with and approved by 
Highways Depot. 

 Details of times for construction traffic and delivery vehicles, which must 
be outside network peak and school peak hours. 

 
The CTMP shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to mitigate the impact of 
construction vehicles on the surrounding highway network, road infrastructure and 
local residents, particularly at morning and afternoon peak traffic times in 
accordance with policy M2 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036.  
 
Swept path analysis 
 

35. Prior to the commencement of development, a swept path analysis shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to 
demonstrate that all vehicles expected to use the site can safely and easily enter 
and manoeuvre within the development. The development shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with policy M2 of the 
Oxford Local Plan 2036.  

49



40 
 

 
Construction Ecological Management Plan 
 

36. Prior to the commencement of development (including ground works and 
vegetation clearance) a Construction Ecological Management Plan (CEMP) shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
CEMP shall include the following: 
 
a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities. 
b) Identification of ‘‘biodiversity protection zones’’.  
c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working 

practices) to avoid or reduce impacts on biodiversity during construction 
(may be provided as set of method statements). 

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity 
features. 

e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be 
present on site to oversee works.  

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication 
g) The role and responsibilities on site of a qualified ecological clerk of 

works (ECoW) or similarly competent person. 
h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs where 

required.  
 
The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the 
construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  The prevention of harm to species and habitats within and outside the 
site during construction in accordance with Policy G2: Protection of biodiversity 
and geo-diversity of the adopted Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Reptile Mitigation Strategy  
 

37. The development hereby approved shall be implemented strictly in accordance 
with the approved Reptile Mitigation Strategy, Version 1.0, MKA Ecology 7th 
September 2022. 
 
Reason: To comply with the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). 
 
Landscape and Ecology Management Plan  
 

38. Prior to the commencement of development, a revised Landscape and Ecological 
Management Plan (LEMP), including long-term design objectives, management 
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The LEMP 
shall be carried out as approved and any subsequent variations shall be agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include the following 
elements: 

50



41 
 

 Details of maintenance regimes relating to the long-term management of 
the trees overhanging the balancing pond to enable the emergent and 
marginal vegetation to thrive. 

 Details of the proposed native species of plants used to create new habitat 
on the North Western bank of the balancing pond. 

 Details of the proposed native species which will be planted in the area 
between the South bank of the pond and the proposed development. 

 Details of long-term management responsibilities and when management 
will be carried out. 

 
Reason: To comply with the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and 
The Conservation of Habitats Regulations 2017 (as amended) and enhance 
biodiversity in Oxford City in accordance with paragraphs 174 and 180 of the 
NPPF. 
 
Habitat creation – balancing pond 

 
39. Prior to the commencement of above ground works, a scheme for the provision 

and management of additional habitat creation within and next to the balancing 
pond shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with 
the approved scheme. The scheme shall include the following: 

 Additional survey information for the sloping bank on the North West side of 
the pond to determine below water level contours, the potential presence of 
a marginal shelf in relation to the original SUDs design, and water depths. 

 Plans showing the location and extent of proposed marginal and emergent 
vegetation; all plants shall be locally native species of UK genetic 
provenance. 

 Details of initial tree works that may be required to reduce shading which 
will enable the planting to establish and thrive long-term. 

 Details of proposed planting in the area between the South bank of the 
pond and the proposed development. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not affect the ecological 
value of the waterbody in accordance with paragraph 180 of the NPPF. 
 
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy 

 
40. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in complete accordance 

with the following submitted documents unless otherwise approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority: 
 

 Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy (Campbell Reith, November 
2022, P2) 

 Flood Risk Assessment Addendum Note (Campbell Reith, 19th December 
2022) 

 Site wide surface water drainage strategy Technical Note (Campbell Reith, 
10th January 2023) 

51



42 
 

 Flood Risk Management and Evacuation Plan (Campbell Reith, November 
2022) 

 Proposed drainage layout, sheet 1 of 4 (dwg. no. 5050, Rev. P5) 

 Proposed drainage layout, sheet 2 of 4 (dwg. no. 5051, Rev. P5) 

 Proposed drainage layout, sheet 3 of 4 (dwg. no. 5052, Rev. P5) 

 Proposed drainage layout, sheet 4 of 4 (dwg. no. 5053, Rev. P5)   

 All relevant Hydraullic calculations produces via Microdrainage 14.11.2022 
File Stage 3+ SW Network 1.MDX and File Stage 3+ SW Network 2.MDX 

 
Reason: To ensure the that the development does not lead to an increased flood 
risk within the site or surrounding area in accordance with policy RE3 of the 
Oxford Local Plan 2036 and to ensure that the development is drained sustainably 
in accordance with policy RE4 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
Flood Risk – EA  

 
41. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted flood risk 

assessment Ref: Plots 23-26, The Oxford Science Park Flood Risk Assessment 
and Campbell Reith, November 2022, P2 and the following mitigation measures it 
details: 

 Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 58.31 metres Above 
Ordnance Datum (mAOD) 

 Where the development displaces flood water, compensatory storage shall 
be provided. Details of this compensation need to be identified and agreed 
so that it will mitigate any displaced flood water as reference in the FRA 

 There should be no modification of ground levels that would affect flood risk 
except where flood compensation has been agreed 

 
 These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and 

subsequently in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements. The 
measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout 
the lifetime of the development. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the risk of flooding on and off-site is reduced and to 
maintain the safety of future occupiers is preserved by ensuring that 
compensatory storage of flood water is provided in accordance with paragraph 
167 of the NPPF and Policy RE3 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 
 
SuDS  

 
42. Prior to first occupation, a record of the installed SuDS and site wide drainage 

scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority for deposit with the Lead Local Flood Authority Asset Register. The 
details shall include: 
a) As built plans in both .pdf and .shp file format; 
b) Photographs to document each key stage of the drainage system when 

installed on site; 
c) Photographs to document the completed installation of the drainage structures 

on site; 

52



43 
 

d) The name and contact details of any appointed management company 
information 

 
Reason: to ensure that the development is drained sustainably in accordance with 
policy RE4 of the Oxford Local Plan 2036. 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 

1. This development is liable for CIL.  
 

2. The Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a 
permit or exemption to be obtained for any activities which will take place: 

 

 on or within 8 metres of a main river (16 metres if tidal) 

 on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16  
metres if tidal) 

 on or within 16 metres of a sea defence 

 involving quarrying or excavation within 16 metres of any main river, flood 
defence (including a remote defence) or culvert 

 in a floodplain more than 8 metres from the river bank, culvert or flood defence 
structure (16 metres if it’s a tidal main river) and you don’t already have 
planning permission 

 
For further guidance please visit https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-
activitiesenvironmental-permits or contact our National Customer Contact Centre 
on 03708 506 506 (Monday to Friday, 8am to 6pm) or by emailing 
enquiries@environmentagency.gov.uk. 

 
The applicant should not assume that a permit will automatically be forthcoming 
once planning permission has been granted, and we advise them to consult with 
us at the earliest opportunity. 

  

13. APPENDICES 

 Appendix 1 – Site location plan 

 Appendix 2 – ODRP report 

 

14. HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 

14.1. Officers have considered the implications of the Human Rights Act 1998 in reaching 
a recommendation to approve this application. They consider that the interference 
with the human rights of the applicant under Article 8/Article 1 of Protocol 1 is 
justifiable and proportionate for the protection of the rights and freedom of others or 
the control of his/her property in this way is in accordance with the general interest. 

15. SECTION 17 OF THE CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 

15.1. Officers have considered, with due regard, the likely effect of the proposal on the 
need to reduce crime and disorder as part of the determination of this application, in 

53

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-


44 
 

accordance with section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. In reaching a 
recommendation to grant planning permission, officers consider that the proposal will 
not undermine crime prevention or the promotion of community. 

54



Appendix 1 – Site Location Plan  
 
The Oxford Science Park plots 23-26 22/02168/FUL 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

55



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel 

Plots 23-26,  
Oxford Science Park 

21st July 2022 

Appendix 2

57



Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel 

Ref: 1777/220707 

2 

 

Introduction 
This report reflects the design workshop held in Oxford on 7th July 2022, following a site 
visit and presentation by the design team.  

The proposal is for some 41,000 sq.m of office and laboratory space, with up to 1050 parking 
spaces, on a greenfield site at the western end of the Oxford Science Park. The site has been 
allocated in the Local Plan for B1 employment uses that directly relate to Oxford’s key sectors 
of research-led development at the Science Park. 

A summary of the Panel discussion is provided below, highlighting the main items raised. 
We then provide the key recommendations aimed at improving the design quality of the 
proposal. Detailed comments are presented under headings covering the main attributes 
of the scheme and we close with the details of the meeting (appendix A) and the scheme 
(appendix B). 

Paragraph 133 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) states that “local 
planning authorities should ensure that they have access to, and make appropriate use of, 
tools and processes for assessing and improving the design of development. These 
include workshops to engage the local community, design advice and review 
arrangements, and assessment frameworks such as Building for a Healthy Life 51. These 
are of most benefit if used as early as possible in the evolution of schemes and are 
particularly important for significant projects such as large scale housing and mixed use 
developments. In assessing applications, planning authorities should have regard to the 
outcome from these processes, including any recommendations made by design review 
panels.” 

  

58



Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel 

Ref: 1777/220707 

3 

Summary 
The Oxford Science Park was established thirty years ago and has been a remarkable 
success. It is a major employer in the specialist areas of life sciences, complementing 
Oxford University’s international reputation in this field. The landscape design has 
matured attractively and although some of the earlier buildings are showing their age, the 
more recent architecture is of a high standard. Sites 23-26 are at the western end of the 
Science Park and will be one of the last to be developed for a headquarters-scale occupier. 

The workshop began with a reflection on the wider context of the development proposal; 
namely the future of the Science Park itself. There is scope for the Park to become denser, 
using car parks and the public realm efficiently, minimising car journeys and boosting the 
vitality and vibrancy of the area. There are some obvious legal and ownership challenges, 
but a long-term vision combined with an incremental approach could reap dividends. 

The Panel believes that Plots 23-26 should tie into this vision. The proposed buildings are 
large, but generally the site seems capable of accommodating them. Of greater concern is 
the way they relate to the outdoor areas, and whether the gaps in between the blocks can 
be satisfactorily animated in the way envisaged. The architectural expression – especially 
the double height colonnade and the vertical fins – may be rather too forceful as a 
backdrop to the adjacent Shrödinger Building. 

The proposal for a temporary multi-storey car park that could be converted piecemeal to 
office space is fraught with difficulty. Case studies where this has been achieved 
successfully, with concomitant analysis of the structural implications, pitfalls and 
feasibility, would provide a more convincing case. A more conventional approach would 
be easier to achieve and avoid compromising the architecture. 

The ‘fabric first’ approach to sustainable development seems sound. It is encouraging that 
environmental specialists have been part of the team from the outset. 

As it stands, the scheme may struggle to meet the required net biodiversity gains. 

 

 

  

59



Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel 

Ref: 1777/220707 

4 

Key recommendations 
1. The Science Park team should take steps to draw up a long-term vision for the whole of 

its area, identifying ways in which the Park could be denser and richer without 
diminishing its distinctive verdant character. This should anticipate the reduction in 
parking needs when the train station opens and be coordinated with leasing strategies. 
The aim should be to progress gradually from a road-based layout to one based on 
footpaths, biodiversity and a tighter-knit built form. 

2. As part of this ambition, every opportunity should be taken to reduce car journeys and 
use car parking spaces as efficiently as possible. This will hasten the release of land for 
more beneficial purposes. The strategy for achieving this could be usefully informed by 
engagement with the users themselves, to derive an understanding of current barriers 
and opportunities, which may be different to those currently assumed, and may 
therefore open up unexpected solutions.  

3. The car parking strategy at Plots 23-26 should be reconsidered, reducing the undercroft 
car parking and replacing the convertible multi-storey with a freestanding, temporary 
structure. 

4.  Adjusting the position of the blocks will produce a more serviceable public realm and 
perhaps a better opportunity for active frontages. Repositioning could also allow for 
future densification of the campus. The continuously glazed façade currently serves as a 
hindrance to occupying the edge with more informal, intimate, or introverted activity, 
such that the relaxed occupation at these thresholds – envisioned in the plots’ strategy – 
remains unconvincing. Thought should be given to using some of the quieter external 
areas as outdoor rooms for staff or visitors.  

5. Re-examine the need for the colonnade. Whilst it is an expressive form, it eats into 
ground floor space and does not respond well to the (north facing orientation elevation. 
A simpler form would sit more comfortably with the adjacent buildings. 

6. Interrogate the landscape design further, to make more tangible biodiversity gains. 

7. Reassess the flood water attenuation strategy, ensure standing water is a viable long 
term commitment or approach the design with an alternative strategy for the area 
currently designated for standing water. 

  

60



Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel 

Ref: 1777/220707 

5 

Detailed comments and recommendations 

1. Design strategy and sustainability 

1.1. The Oxford Science Park has been a conspicuous success, to the extent that after 
thirty years it is running out of space. This is the moment to look at the remaining 
plots in the context of the Park as a whole, with a view to its consolidation and 
improvement. We understand the complexities of ownership and leases, but believe 
that in the long term a denser, vibrant but still green place can be achieved. Setting 
out a clear vision and the steps for achieving it should be put in place now.  

1.2. The greenfield site of Plots 23-26 is long and thin, falling some two metres from 
north to south. The northernmost part is in a flood risk zone and there is a well-
established belt of trees screening the site from Grenoble Road and the A4074. Given 
these conditions the blocks are logically positioned, but they are too deferential to 
the existing internal road layout and its rather profligate circle. If this arrangement 
can be challenged by a tighter form, we think it could make for a better scheme.  

1.3. The proposal is still at an early stage and has yet to be tested in a landscape and 
visual impact assessment (LVIA) but subject to this work, the height, massing and 
scale seems generally appropriate. However, the car parking provision - at least in 
the short term - seems excessive and has forced some uncomfortable design 
decisions. If the undercroft car parking could be reduced to the minimum, it would 
free up space for more appropriate uses and create new design opportunities.  

2. Open spaces, landscape and biodiversity 

2.1. The blocks are sensibly orientated to allow good light penetration in the spaces in 
between, but we question how these will be experienced by their users. They will be 
heavily overlooked – not always desirable – and could be windy at times. We think 
other ‘outdoor rooms’ should be investigated, perhaps in the meadow or woodland 
areas, where there could be more seclusion, whilst still being safe and accessible. A 
similar testing exercise should be done at the front, where the areas under the 
colonnade could be uninviting. 

2.2. The outdoor rooms are likely to be the primary active areas and if the development is 
to be a part of a wider estate movement strategy could be important tools in creating 
a destination forming strategy. This estate wide role is not yet accounted for and the 
focal points to both ends of these routes are, as yet, ill defined. 

61



Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel 

Ref: 1777/220707 

6 

2.3. The fabric-first, passive design approach to sustainable design is welcome. We 
recognise the importance of generous floor to ceiling heights for the laboratory 
spaces and think this could also assist the BREEAM Excellent target. The use of 
vertical solar panels to conceal the plant area is an interesting initiative and could be 
stimulating visually. 

2.4. Flood storage in the podium car park seems a questionable strategy and probably 
unnecessary, given that the highly permeable sandstone strata should allow good 
percolation to the aquifer. By the same token, the SUDS ponds may also be 
superfluous. We recognise this is work in progress. 

2.5. We doubt whether the scheme as it stands would meet the expectation for a net 
biodiversity gain of 10%. This is partly because of the amount of rooftop plant 
required and the relatively small amount of planting that can be achieved. The 
external areas may yield new, richer possibilities. 

3. Character, architecture and placemaking 

3.1. The architects have sought to respect the setting of the Shrödinger Building, a recent 
and distinctive addition to the Science Park, however we believe that it is not 
necessary to be too subservient, as the Schrödinger Building is not particularly 
special. Heights have been kept reasonably low and we do not think that any 
glimpses from the main roads are likely or would be problematic. The rooftop profile 
could perhaps be more overtly articulated; the idea of a marker element visible from 
the road and to draw your through the Park is worth pursuing.  

3.2. However, the elevations have rather too forceful a presence and the double height 
colonnade emphasises the big scale of the buildings. Omitting these colonnades 
would provide some extra space and help to simplify the facades. A more restful 
appearance with less contrasting materials might sit more comfortably with 
surrounding buildings as well as avoiding unwelcome sensory overload for certain 
users.  

3.3. The multistorey car park sits uneasily alongside the principal building, and we have 
strong concerns about the practicality of designing it to be converted to office or lab 
space at some unspecified date. It presents challenges of design, procurement and 
viability, as well as phasing. Instead, it would be preferable to design a well-
mannered, temporary and freestanding multistorey car park that could be removed 
in its entirety and replaced with new building with no compromises on its structure 
or dimensions. 

62



Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel 

Ref: 1777/220707 

7 

3.4. Achieving active frontages can be challenging for developments on this scale. The 
notion of ‘science on show’ is attractive and would help to make all the entrances 
explicit. Having cycle storage prominently at the front would also help to promote 
active travel. 

3.5. The panel questioned if the amount of active frontage (cafes, spill out areas) along 
the north facing elevation is realistic and suggested that it might be worth 
considering activation at a key point, where it can integrate well with the public 
realm and provide a focus point for this part of the Science Park. 

3.6. The atria within the buildings are appealing. To derive maximum social potential 
from these spaces, careful consideration of the acoustics and lighting are important 
factors. Natural daylight serves as a clear draw, but the current choice of hard, 
reflective surfaces which line the space, may significantly hinder the acoustic 
comfort, and the ability for the atria to be sociably occupied, which in addition may 
be especially problematic and discouraging for neurodiverse users with particular 
needs. 

  

63



Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel 

Ref: 1777/220707 

8 

 

Appendix A: Meeting details 

Reference number 1777/220707 

Date 7th July 2022 

Meeting location Magdelen Centre, Oxford Science Park OX4 4GA 

Panel members 
attending 

Joanne Cave (chair), urban design and planning  
John Pegg, landscape architecture and urban design  
Justin Nicholls, architecture and R&D specialist  
Maayan Linlingai Ashkenazi, urban design and regeneration  
Stina Hokby, urban design and public realm 

Panel manager Geoff Noble, Design South East 

Presenting team Rory Maw, Oxford Science Park 
Ed Hayden, Scott Brownrigg 
Pierre Chin-Dickey, Macfarlane + Associates 
Joanne Quirin, Hoare Lea 

Other attendees Jitesh Patel, Oxford Science Park 
Jennifer Coppock, Oxford City Council  

Site visit Panel members visited the site before the meeting, accompanied by 
the client, design team and City Council officers 

Scope of the 
review 

As an independent design review panel, the scope of this workshop 
was not restricted. The local planning authority has asked us to look 
at the following topics: 

• Height, massing and design 
• The treatment of the multistorey car park 

Panel interests No interests were declared.  

64



Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel 

Ref: 1777/220707 

9 

Confidentiality This report is confidential as the scheme is not yet the subject of a 
planning application. Full details on our confidentiality policy can be 
found at the end of this report.  

Previous reviews This is the first review of the current proposal.  

Appendix B: Scheme details 
Name Plots 23-26 Oxford Science Park 

Site location The western edge of the Science Park, bounded by Grenoble Road. 

Site details Greenfield site located north east of the A4074 approximately 3.89 ha. 
The plots are characterised by large areas of rough grassland with a 
strip of hardstanding along the northern portion. A dense belt of trees 
line the eastern and southern boundaries of plots 23-25, screening 
the site from Grenoble Road and partially from the A4074. A large 
pond and Littlemore Brook lies to the north and west of plot 26.  

Proposal The proposed development comprises the development of three 
detached fully serviced and flexible laboratory and office building at 
Plot 23-26, providing approximately 41,081sqm (GIA) (442,192sqft) of 
Class E(g) floorspace. Landscape, biodiversity enhancement, access, 
car and cycle parking and associated works are also proposed. 

Planning stage The scheme is at pre-application stage. An application is targeted at 2 
September 2022. 

Local planning 
authority 

Oxford City Council 

Planning context The main planning constraints are: 

• Flood risk. Part of plot 26 partially lies within flood zones2 and 
3 (medium to high probability of flooding). 

• Landscape buffer and ecology corridor 
• Local Plan policy requires non-residential developments over 

1,000sq. m. to meet BREEAM Excellent standard as well as 
achieving at least a 40% reduction in carbon emissions 
compared with the new building regulations  

• Air Quality Management Area 

65



Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel 

Ref: 1777/220707 

10 

Planning history Planning permission was granted in February 2001, for a four storey 
building and 189 car parking spaces (including 69 decked car park) 
(app ref : 00/02256/NF) for Plot 26 In March 2008 reserved matters 
approval was granted for a three storey building and 83 car parking 
spaces, including undercroft parking (app ref: 07/02830/RES). These 
consents were not implemented. 
 
An outline application with all matters reserved for approx. 30,000sq. 
m. of R&D use on plots 23-26 and plot 18 was withdrawn in April 
2022 due to the new development proposed on plot 18. 

 

This report is a synthesis of the panel’s discussion during the review and does not relate to any discussions that may have 
taken place outside of this design review meeting. A draft report is reviewed by all panel members and the Chair ahead of 
issuing the final version, to ensure key points and the Panel’s overarching recommendations are accurately reported.  

The report does not minute the proceedings but aims to provide a summary of the panel’s recommendations and 
guidance.  

Confidentiality  

If the scheme was not the subject of a planning application when it came to the panel, this report is offered in confidence 
to those who attended the review meeting. There is no objection to the report being shared within the recipients’ 
organisations provided that the content of the report is treated in the strictest confidence. Neither the content of the 
report, nor the report itself can be shared with anyone outside the recipients’ organisations. Design South East reserves 
the right to make the content of this report known should the views contained in this report be made public in whole or in 
part (either accurately or inaccurately). Unless previously agreed, pre-application reports will be made publicly available 
if the scheme becomes the subject of a planning application or public inquiry. Design South East also reserves the right to 
make this report available to another design review panel should the scheme go before them. If you do not require this 
report to be kept confidential, please inform us.  

If the scheme is the subject of a planning application the report will be made publicly available, and we expect the local 
authority to include it in the case documents.  

Role of design review  

This is the report of a design review panel, forum or workshop. Design review is endorsed by the National Planning Policy 
Framework and the opinions and recommendations of properly conducted, independent design review panels should be 
given weight in planning decisions including appeals. The panel does not take planning decisions. Its role is advisory. The 
panel’s advice is only one of a number of considerations that local planning authorities have to take into account in 
making their decisions.  

The role of design review is to provide independent expert advice to both the applicant and the local planning authority. 
We will try to make sure that the panel are informed about the views of local residents and businesses to inform their 
understanding of the context of the proposal. However, design review is a separate process to community engagement 
and consultation. 

66



Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel 

Ref: 1777/220707 

11 

 

Design South East Limited  

Admirals Office 

The Historic Dockyard 

Chatham, Kent 

ME4 4TZ 

 

T 01634 401166 

E info@designsoutheast.org  

designsoutheast.org  

 

67



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Minutes of a meeting of the  

Planning - Oxford City Planning Committee 

on Tuesday 24 January 2023  

 

Committee members present: 

Councillor Clarkson (Chair) Councillor Upton (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Altaf-Khan Councillor Aziz 

Councillor Chapman Councillor Fouweather 

Councillor Hollingsworth Councillor Malik 

Councillor Morris (for Councillor Pegg) Councillor Rehman 

Officers present for all or part of the meeting:  

David Butler, Head of Planning Services 
Robert Fowler, Development Management Team Leader (West) 
Felicity Byrne, Principal Planning Officer 
Tobias Fett, Senior Planning Officer 
Louise Greene, Planning Lawyer 
Emma Lund, Committee and Member Services Officer 
Andrew Murdoch, Planning Manager 

Also present: 

Councillors Brown and Hall 

Apologies: 

Councillors Hunt and Pegg sent apologies. 

The substitute for Councillor Pegg is shown above. 

56. Declarations of interest  

General 

Councillor Upton stated that as a member and trustee of the Oxford Preservation 
Trust she had taken no part in that organisation’s discussions regarding the 
applications before the Committee.  Councillor Upton said that she was approaching 
the applications with an open mind, would listen to all the arguments and weigh up all 
the relevant facts before coming to a decision. 

22/00841/FUL 

Councillor Fouweather stated that he had been a signatory to the call-in but was 
approaching the application with an open mind, would listen to all the arguments and 
weigh up all the relevant facts before coming to a decision. 

 

69

Agenda Item 4



Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

22/01842/FUL 

Councillor Clarkson stated that she was a member of the Remuneration Committee at 
St Edmund Hall, and was acquainted with one of the speakers in that capacity.  
Although she had been aware of the application, Councillor Clarkson stated that she 
had not taken part in any discussion on it or formed or expressed any opinion, and 
would consider the application with an open mind. 

57. 22/01842/FUL: 17 and 19 Norham Gardens, Oxford, OX2 6PS  

The Committee considered an application (22/01842/FUL) for partial demolition and 
alteration of C2 accommodation at 17 Norham Gardens; and demolition of C2 
accommodation building (Brockhues Lodge), erection of 3 no. C2 accommodation 
buildings including drainage and landscape works and minor alterations to listed 
building and demolition of curtilage listed building at 19 Norham Gardens. 

The Planning Officer gave a presentation and highlighted the following: 

 Paragraph 10.11 of the report required correction to reflect that the total number of 
new rooms on the site was 128, and not 110.  This figure comprised 110 rooms 
within the new block, and 18 refurbished rooms within 17 Norham Gardens.  This 
would still provide a net gain of 72 rooms as stated in the report, equating to a net 
gain of 29 houses released to the market (not 30). 
 

 Paragraph 10.81 of the report required correction to reflect that the existing three 
car parking spaces would be reduced to two car parking spaces.  This was 
considered to be a positive change, which would result in a reduction of traffic to 
the site. 

 

 The principle of the development was considered acceptable, as it represented 
redevelopment of an existing site providing student accommodation for St Edmund 
Hall.  It would result in an increase on the existing 56 student rooms to 128, with 
the accommodation being used to house undergraduate students.  This would 
enable the College to better support the health and wellbeing of this student group 
through the provision of rooms and ancillary facilities on site.  

 

 The proposal would enable the space at the site to be utilised more efficiently, as 
well as providing more energy efficient and sustainable accommodation which 
would meet Passivhaus standard. The development also offered improved access 
arrangements for students, staff and visitors with disabilities. 

 

 The development was considered to respond appropriately to the street scene and 
its context; the massing, bulk and amount of student accommodation was 
considered suitable for the site; and the proposal was considered to be of high 
quality architectural design.  The high quality provision of biodiversity, sustainable 
drainage, and energy efficiency was considered by officers to be exemplary.  
Whilst there would be some harm to heritage assets in terms of the conservation 
area and the setting of the listed building, this was considered to be of low level 
less than substantial harm which would be outweighed by the public benefits.  The 
application was therefore recommended for approval.  

 

70



Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

Eleanor Burnett (for the applicant) and Naila Yousuf (architect) spoke in favour of the 
application. 

The Committee asked questions about the details of the application, which were 
responded to by officers.  The Committee’s discussions included, but were not limited 
to: 

 Re-siting of plant from above the rooms to the basement had enabled a reduction 
in the massing of the roof area; 

 

 The provision of purpose built accommodation would have a positive impact on 
student welfare; 

 

 Officers undertook to discuss with Oxfordshire County Council the periods within 
the day when the movement of construction and demolition vehicles should be 
permitted or restricted, in order to avoid peak traffic / cycling hours associated with 
nearby schools’ afternoon pick up times and minimise the risk of road traffic 
accidents; 

 

 The removal of the existing unsympathetic extensions was considered to be a 
positive benefit of the scheme.  Other public benefits were cited as: the releasing of 
housing stock into the general market; the provision of purpose built student 
accommodation enabling the College to capitalise on its reputation as a centre for 
excellence; the substantial biodiversity increase and the reinstatement of the front 
gardens; and the enhanced carbon performance of the buildings. 

 

 A committee member highlighted that in considering planning applications, the 
judgement as to whether the benefits of a scheme outweighed any less than 
substantial harm needed to be based on benefits to the public, rather than private 
benefits to applicants themselves.  The committee member requested that it be 
recorded that enhanced carbon performance of buildings was considered by the 
Committee to be a public and not a private benefit, which would be taken into 
account by the Committee in making its judgement in this regard.  Another 
committee member commended the environmental credentials of this particular 
proposal; and another was pleased that the development would deliver enhanced 
student welfare through purpose built accommodation. 

 

On being proposed, seconded and put to the vote the Committee agreed with the 
officer’s recommendation to approve the application for the reasons set out in the report 
and subject to the required planning conditions set out in the report. 

The Oxford City Planning Committee resolved to: 

1. approve the application for the reasons given in the report and subject to the 
required planning conditions set out in section 12 of this report and grant planning 
permission; and 

 
2. delegate authority to the Head of Planning Services to: 

 

 finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report including such 
refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions as the Head of Planning 
Services considers reasonably necessary; and 

71



Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

 

 issue the planning permission.  

58. 22/00841/FUL: Cotswold House, 110C Banbury Road, Oxford, 
Oxfordshire OX2 6JU  

The Committee considered an application (22/00841/FUL) for the demolition of existing 
rear sheds and external rear fire escape; erection of two storey rear extension with 
glazed link to provide 8 no. additional student rooms and refurbishment of existing 
property to provide 11 no. additional student rooms; replacement of 1 no. window 1 no. 
door to side elevation; replacement of 1 no. window with 1 no. vent to side elevation; 
replacement of 1 no. window and fire escape door with 1 no. window to rear elevation; 
replacement windows; formation of bin and cycle stores to rear; new accessible 
landscaping to front and new side access gate; provision of accessible car parking to 
front; hard and soft landscaping at Cotswold House, 110C Banbury Road, Oxford. 

The Planning Officer presented the report, including proposed site plans and 
elevations, and visual representations.  The officer recommendation was to approve the 
application, subject to the required planning conditions set out in the report. 

Dr Giles Campion (local resident) spoke against the application. 

Jayne Norris (agent) and Sir Malcolm Evans (for the applicant) spoke in favour of the 
application. 

The Committee asked questions about the details of the application, which were 
responded to by officers.  The Committee’s discussions included, but were not limited 
to: 

 The use of the property had been certified to be student accommodation since 
1992, rather than three flats which happened to be occupied by students. Officers 
did not therefore consider the proposal to result in the loss of family accommodation 
for the purposes of planning policies. 

 

 A previous application for a much larger extension had been withdrawn in June 
2020.  The proposal now before the Committee represented a reduction in scale of 
development compared with that application. 

 

 There was a challenge for the applicant in looking to provide student 
accommodation within an existing residential area, and in a relatively confined 
space. 

 

 Some Councillors considered that the proposal represented over-development, and 
that it was not visually pleasing and was out of character for the area.  It was noted 
that there would be also be an impact on neighbouring amenity in terms of the 
effect of construction on the plum tree within the grounds of No. 112 Banbury Road. 

 

On being proposed, seconded, and put to the vote the Committee agreed with the 
officer’s recommendation to approve the application for the reasons given in the report 
and subject to the required planning conditions set out in the report. 

72



Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX 

The Oxford City Planning Committee resolved to: 

1. approve the application for the reasons given in the report and subject to the 
required planning conditions set out in section 12 of the report and grant planning 
permission; and 

 
2. delegate authority to the Head of Planning Services to: 

 

 finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report including such 
refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions as the Head of Planning 
Services considers reasonable necessary. 

59. Minutes  

The Committee resolved to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 
2022 as a true and accurate record. 

60. Forthcoming applications  

The Committee noted the list of forthcoming applications. 

61. Dates of future meetings  

The Committee noted the dates of future meetings. 

Due to the workflow of applications, and a recent increase in the number of major 
applications received, the Chair and the Planning Manager informed the Committee 
that there may be a need to use some of the Overspill meeting dates, and in particular 
the dates of 16 March and 20 April 2023.  

 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.46 pm 

 

Chair ………………………….. Date:  Tuesday 21 February 2023 

 

When decisions take effect: 
Cabinet: after the call-in and review period has expired 
Planning Committees: after the call-in and review period has expired and the formal 

decision notice is issued 
All other committees: immediately. 
Details are in the Council’s Constitution. 
 

73



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 22/02168/FUL: Plots 23-26, Oxford Science Park, Grenoble Road, Oxford OX4 4GB
	Appendix 1 - Site Location Plan
	Appendix 2 - Report of the Oxford Design Review Panel

	4 Minutes

